
MERGER AGREEMENT 

This Merger Agreement, hereafter "Merger Agreement" or "Agreement" is 

entered into this I I th day of August, 2000, by and between 

KENTUCKY TURNPIKE WATER DISTRICT "KTWD" 

A Water-District Organized under KRS Chapter 74 
3396 Burkland Blvd. 
Shepherdsville, Kentucky 401 65 

AND 

LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY 

A Municipally Owned Corporation 
Governed by the Board of Water Works 
Pursuant to KRS 96.230 through 96.31 0 
550 South Third Street 
Louisville, Kentucky 40202 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS KTWD and LWC executed a certain lease agreement dated 

November 18, 1968 governing LWC1s provision of water and system operation 

services within KTWD's Bullitt County service area, which lease agreement was 

further defined by a settlement agreement between the parties dated October 21, 

1975; 

WHEREAS LWC has operated the KTWD service area known as 

Kentucky Turnpike Water District, Division No. 1, "KTWD Division # I  ," 

continuously on behalf of KTWD since the execution of said lease agreement; 



WHEREAS, the Kentucky Public Service Commission ordered the merger 

of KTWD and the Salt River Water District in 1993, which said merger formed 

KTWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2; 

WHEREAS, LWC and KTWD desire to end said lease agreement and 

enter into a Merger Agreement (hereafter "Merger Agreement"), and, in 

furtherance of that desire, LWC and KTWD executed a "Statement of Intent" 

(hereafter "Statement") on February 17, 2000, at Exhibit A and incorporated 

herein by reference. To the extent of any conflict or inconsistency between the 

terms of the Merger Agreement and terms of the Statement or between the sets 

of exhibits in the Merger Agreement and the sets of exhibits in the Statement, the 

terms and exhibits to the Merger Agreement supercede the terms and exhibits to 

the Statement; 

WHEREAS, by letter dated June 28, 2000 and by letter dated August I, 

2000, both at Exhibit Q and incorporated herein by reference, LWC and KTWD 

by mutual agreement extended the Statement for thirty-one days from July 1, 

2000, to and including August 1, 2000 and for ten days from August I, 2000 to 

and including August 1 I ,  2000, respectively, continuing the Statement under all 

the same terms and conditions outlined therein, and 

WHEREAS, LWC and KTWD now desire to enter into the Merger 

Agreement anticipated by and described in the Statement of Intent. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

Section One - Definitions for this Merger Agreement 

As used in this Merger Agreement, the following terms have the following 

meanings: 

"Assets" shall mean all of KTWD1s property, tangible and intangible, including, 

but not limited to the distribution system, pump stations, storage tanks, 

equipment, materials, cellular communication leases, real and personal property, 



easements, lien rights, developer contracts, tapping fee contracts, leases, 

contracts, grants, pending grants, construction reserve funds, operating reserve 

funds, accounts receivable, licenses, rights to serve, if any, and promissory notes 

to be owned by LWC in this merger, a complete inventory of which has been 

reviewed and agreed to by the parties and is included at Exhibit B and 

incorporated herein by reference. 

"Liabilities" shall mean all of KTWD's liabilities, known, unknown or contingent, 

including but not limited to debt and the contractual obligations of KTWD Division 

#I and KTWD Division #2, to be assumed by LWC in this merger, a complete list 

of which known liabilities has been reviewed and agreed to by the parties and is 

included at Exhibit C and incorporated herein by reference. 

"Closing Date" shall mean the date no later than ten calendar days after 

approval of the Merger Agreement by the Kentucky Public Service Commission; 

this Closing Date and the date of execution of the Merger Agreement may be 

exte.nded in writing by mutual agreement of the parties. 

"Employees" shall mean those six persons employed full-time at KTWD at the 

time of execution of the Statement of Intent, plus any additional person(s) hired 

after that date but before the Closing Date, if any such additional person(s) was 

hired with the approval of the LWC; names of those employees are included at 

Exhibit D and incorporated herein by reference. 

"Statement of intent" shall mean that document executed by KTWD and LWC 

on February 17,2000 on the subject of merger of KTWD and LWC, and its 

amendments dated June 28, 2000 and August 1, 2000, which are includftd in this 

Merger Agreement at Exhibit A (Statement) and Exhibit Q (Amendments), 

respectively. 



Section Two -- Merger 

Upon the terms and conditions contained in this Merger Agreement and for good 

and valuable consideration as outlined in this Merger Agreement, the sufficiency 

of which is acknowledged by the parties through their assent to this Merger 

Agreement and evidenced by their signatures hereinbelow, LWC and KTWD 

agree to merge. 

A. Terms 

This merger includes the conveyance to LWC of all assets owned by 

KTWD, as the term "assets" is defined for this Merger Agreement and the 

assumption of all liabilities from KTWD, as the term "liabilities" is defined 

for this Merger Agreement. As a result of this merger and after the 

Closing Date, LWC shall be responsible for water service, management, 

administration and ownership of the following: 

0 KTWD Division #I and Division #2 service areas, as shown in 

Exhibit E; 

* KTWD Division #I and Division #2 Assets including those 

Assets shown in Exhibit B; 

KTWD Division #I and Division #2 customer accounts as shown 

in Exhibit J; and 

KTWD Division #I and Division #2 Liabilities including those 

Liabilities shown in Exhibit C. 

B. Coilsideratioii 

In consideration for the merger, LWC agrees to install, over time, certain 

system improvements within the KTWD sewice area in Bullitt County. The 

system improvements shall be known collectively as the Burlitt County 

Water Improvement Program (BCWIP), and shall iriclude the following: 



0 1-65 Transmission Main System and system growth 

improvements within five (5) years from Closing Date, as those 

improvements are described in Exhibit F, 

KNVD Division #I and KTWD Division #2 System 

Improvements within five (5) years from Closing Date, as those 

improvements are described in Exhibit G, and 

The Bullitt County Extension Program (BCEP), with the 

backbone water mains of the BCEP to be constructed within ten 

(10) years from Closing Date, as those backbone water mains 

are described in Exhibit H, 

Anticipated BCEP distribution water mains are also described in 

Exhibit H, and these distribution water mains will be offered to 

unserved public roads within ten (10) years from the date of 
-. completion of the BCEP plan. Each distribution water main will 

require a two-thirds majority petition of residents on the road for 

the main to be built. 

LWC agrees to contribute a total of $5 million towards projects and 

improvements in Bullitt County, as described in Exhibit F. Changes, if any, 

to the 1-65 Transmission Main System will be made in mutual consultation 

with the Bullitt County Advisory Board (BCAB); the BCAB is more fully 

described at Section Ten, Paragraph K of this Merger Agreement. The 

parties acknowledge that any such change in the 1-65 Transmission Main 

System will be for growth-related improvements. 

Other activities, improvements and liabilities, including but not limited to 

those improvements and liabilities set out at Exhibits G and H, and Exhibit 

C, to this Merger Agreement, respectively, related to the operation of 

KTWD Division #I and Division #2 and the Bullitt County Extension 

Program will be funded from the Bullitt County Water Reserve. 



Section Three - K W D  Assets and Liabilities 

Pursuant to the terms of this Merger Agreement, on the Closing Date, KTWD 

shall convey, assign and deliver to LWC and LWC agrees to accept from KTWD 

any and all assets including those listed in Exhibit B, and KTWD shall convey, 

assign and deliver to LWC and LWC agrees to accept any and all liabilities 

including those listed in Exhibit C. 

A. Title and Possession 

KTWD shall deliver title and possession of assets to LWC on the Closing 

Date. In addition, KTWD through its Chairman shall execute instruments 

of transfer of ail or any portion of the assets, such as deeds, bills of sale, 

and other instruments in writing as may be reasonably requested by LWC 

with LWC to prepare said instruments and the Chairman of KTWD to sign 

said instruments within ninety (90) days after the Closing Date, as further 

specified in this Merger Agreement at Section Eight, Paragraph A, 

subsection 3. KTWD further agrees to cooperate with preparation and 

execution of any additional written instruments of transfer as may be 

reasonably requested after the Closing Date with respect to specific 

assets being acquired by LWC hereunder, where the need for such 

instrument may later appear (for example, an overlooked water line 

easement of record later discovered or an assignment of a specific 

contract right deemed desirable at a later date in order to enforce same). 

KTWD and LWC agree that LWC will prepare any such additional written 

instruments of transfer and that the Chairman of KfWD will sign any such 

additional instruments. 

B. Apdited Financial Statements 

KTWD has furnished, and LWC has reviewed and found satisfactory 1999 

Audited Financial Statements for KTWD Division # I  and KTWD Division 

#2 prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 

(GAAP); KTWD will furnish to LWC on the Closing Date semiannual 



(January 1 through June 30, 2000) Audited Financial Statements for 

MTWD Division #I and Division #2, prepared in conformity with generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and paid for by LWC. Copies of 

the 1999 Audited Financial Statements are Exhibit I and incorporated 

herein by reference; KTWD represents and warrants those 1999 Audited 

Financial Statements to be complete and prepared from KTWD's water 

distribution books and records. Copies of the semiannual (January I 

through June 30, 2000) Audited Financial Statements for KTWD Division 

#1 and Division #2 shall be furnished by KTWD to LWC on the Closing 

Date. 

C. Schedule of Assets 

KTWD has furnished, and LWC has reviewed and found satisfactory a 

schedule of assets, a copy of which is Exhibit B and incorporated herein 

by reference. 

D. Liabilities 

KTWD has furnished, and LWC has reviewed and found satisfactory a list 

of liabilities, which is Exhibit C and incorporated here by reference. 

E. Customer List 

KTWD has furnished, and LWC has reviewed the KTWD list of customers, 

which is Exhibit J and incorporated herein by reference. 

Section Four -- Taxes 

Any federal, state or local taxes or assessments of any kind or description 

assessed against the assets or KTWD's operation of those assets and 

attributable to the period prior to the Closing Date are and will remain the sole 

responsibility and obligation of KTWD to be paid out of the Buliitt County Water 

Reserve. Sales, use, transfer, purchase and documentary taxes, if any, payable 



by reason of the transactions required to fulfill the terms of this Merger 

Agreement and due at the Closing Date shall be the responsibility and obligation 

of K W D ,  to be paid out of the Bullitt County Water Reserve. Any and all taxes, 

sales, use or otherwise, assessed on the assets or the operation thereof, upon or 

after the Closing Date shall be the sole responsibility and obligation of LWC to be 

paid out of the Bullitt County Water Reserve. 

Section Five - Execution of the Merger Agreement and Closing 

Date 

Execution of the Merger Agreement shall take place on or before August 1 1, 

2000. The Closing shall take place at the corporate offices of the Louisville 

Water Company, 550 S. Third Street, Louisville, KY 40202, at the hour of 2:00 

p.m., E.D.T. no later than ten calendar days after approval of the Merger 

Agreement by the Kentucky Public Service Commission on a date fixed by 

agreement of the parties. The Closing Date may be extended in writing by 

mutual agreement of the parties. The parties agree that if the Kentucky Public 

Service Commission should not approve the Merger Agreement, then the 

provisions set out in the Statement of Intent at paragraph 23 (b) for failure to 

execute the agreement due to action by the Public Service Commission shall 

apply, and each party will bear its own administrative costs, including attorney 

fees. 

Section Six -- KTWD's Representations and Warranties 

A. . Authority 

KTWD represents and warrants that it is a water district created by the 

. Bullitt County Fiscal Court, validly existing and in good standing under the 

laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, having full power and authority to 

own the assets and to conduct the water distribution business as and 

where such business has and is now being conducted. 



5. Title and Authority to Convey 

KTWD represents and warrants that it has good and marketable title to all 

of its assets (listed at Exhibit B to this Merger Agreement and incorporated 

herein by reference), and, upon conveyance of same to LWC, each of the 

assets listed at Exhibit B will be free and clear of all claims, mortgages, 

security interests, equities, restrictions, liens, encroachments, pledges, 

options, purchase rights, charges or encumbrances of any kind, except 

those already disclosed to LWC; that it has the right to sell and convey the 

assets, make any necessary assignments, and convey the right to deliver 

water in KTWD District #I and District #2, without referendum or further 

approval of any other governmental agency or entity, excepting approval 

by the Kentucky Public Service Commission; and, that it has the full right, 

power, authority and capacity to execute, deliver and perform this Merger 

Agreement in accord with its terms, which approval is evidenced by 

Resolution of the Kentucky Turnpike Water District at Exhibit K and 

incorporated herein by reference. This Merger Agreement constitutes a 

legal, valid and binding obligation on KTWD. 

C. Operating System 

KTWD represents and warrants that all the assets (listed at Exhibit B to 

this Merger Agreement and incorporated herein by reference) are in good 

working order ordinary wear and tear excepted, sufficient to enable LWC 

to provide water service to KTWD's customers without interruption in 

service. 

D. Environmental Matters 

KTWD represents and warrants that to the best of its knowledge there are 

no toxic, hazardous or carcinogenic substances or wastes disposed, 

stored or present on, in or under any of the assets to be transferred to 

LWC under the terms of this Merger Agreement. KTWD further represents 



that it has not arranged for the shipment of any toxic substances and/or 

wastes, hazardous substances and/or wastes, or carcinogenic substances 

and/or wastes, other than those KTWD lists at Exhibit L. KTWD also 

represents that it has not arranged for the treatment, processing, 

recycling, reclamation, reprocessing, storage or disposal at any site listed 

on the National Priorities List, any Kentucky State Superfund Site, or any 

facility not duly authorized and permitted to accept and treat, process, 

recycle, reclaim, reprocess, store or dispose of such substances and 

wastes. 

E. Financial Statements 

KTWD has furnished, and LWC has reviewed and found satisfactory 1999 

Audited Financial Statements for KTWD Division # I  and KTWD Division 

#2 prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 

(GAAP), which Statements KTWD represents and warrants to be true, 

correct and complete and prepared from KTWD's water distribution books 

and records all of which are Exhibit I and incorporated herein by 

reference; KTWD will furnish to LWC on the Closing Date semiannual 

(January 1 through June 30, 2000) Audited Financial Statements for 

KJWD Division #I and Division #2, prepared in conformity with generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and paid for by LWC. Copies of 

the semiannual (January 1 through June 30, 2000) Audited Financial 

Statements for KTWD Division # I  and Division #2 shall be furnished by 

KTWD to LWC on the Closing Date with KTWD's warranty that the 

Statements are true, correct and complete and prepared from K W D 1 s  

water distribution books and records. 

F. Litigation (Pending and Anticipated) 

KTWD represents and warrants that there are no claims, actions, suits, 

arbitrations, mediations, proceedings or investigations, administrative, 

judicial or otherwise, pending, or, to the best of KTWD's knowledge, 



threatened, administrative, judicial or otherwise, affecting the KTWD water 

distribution system operations or KTWD1s ownership or possession of the 

assets, that have not been disclosed to LWC. 

G. Customer List and Metering 

KTWD represents and warrants that all users of water connected to the 

KTWD distribution system, are listed as KTVVD customers on the 

customer list at Exhibit J, incorporated herein by reference, and, further, 

that those customers, including all governmental facilities, are metered, 

with the exception of the list of unmetered customers, at Exhibit M. After 

the Merger Agreement is executed, LWC will install meters for water 

usage, for any unmetered customers, with the cost of installation of any 

such meters to be funded by the Bullitt County Water Reserve. 

Section Seven -- LWC's Representations and Warranties 

A. Valid Existence 

LWC represents and warrants that it is a rnunicipally-owned Kentucky 

corporation, validly existing and in good standing, acting hereunder 

through the authority of the Board of Water Works, established pursuant to 

KRS Sections 96.230 through 96.31 0. 

B. Authority 

LWC has full right, power and authority to execute this Merger Agreement 

and to perform the terms and conditions contained herein without further 

approval of any governmental agency or entity, other than the approval of 

its own Board of Water Works, which approval is evidenced by Resolution 

of the Board of Water Works at Exhibit N and incorporated herein by 

reference. This Merger Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding 

obligation for LWC. 



Section Eight - Due at Closing 

A. Due from KTWD to LWC 

Unless LWC produces a written waiver of any item listed herein, KTWD 

shall deliver to LWC at closing the following: 

1. A document evidencing in writing to LWC the exclusive authority 

if there be any such exclusive authority granted to KTWD, to 

provide water service to the properties and residents of KTWD 

Division #I and Division #2; 

2. A quitclaim deed for any real property owned by KNVD (and 

listed in the schedgle,~f assets at Exhibit B) to be prepared by 

LWC, said deed to be duly executed, acknowledged and 

delivered by KTWD conveying to LWC marketable fee simple 

title to such real property at the closing; 

3. All of KTWD's title and ownership interest and any other interest 

in real property. The parties agree that any deed or deeds 

transferring to LWC all of KTWD's title and ownership interest in 

and to easements of record, used and/or acquired by KTWD to 

install and/or maintain water distribution facilities (which facilities 

are among the assets transferred to LWC in this Merger 

Agreement) shall be prepared by LWC and signed by KTWD 

Chairman within ninety (90) days of the Closing Date; 

4. All of KTWD's title and ownership interest and any other interest 

in personal property, tangible or intangible. The parties agree 

that any bill of sale for personal property (tangible or intangible) 

(which personal property is among the assets transferred to 

LWC in this Merger Agreement), shall be prepared by LWC and 

signed by KTWD Chairman within sixty (60) days of the Closing 

Date; 



5 .  An inventory, taken by LWC in the presence of a KTWD 
representative no later than 10 days in advance of the Ciosing 

Date, detailing all materials and supplies on hand and to be 

included within the assets in the Schedule of Assets, (except to 

the extent those materials and supplies on hand are installed or 

consumed in the ordinary course of KTWD's business prior to 

the Closing Date) which is Exhibit B to this Merger Agreement 

and incorporated herein by reference; 

6. All customer records (including the customer list described in 

Section Three, Paragraph E and set out in Exhibit J), and 

engineering and supplier records relating to KTWD Division #I 

and Division #2 including those of the former Salt River Water 

District, including but not limited to a list of ail KTWD customers, 

wholesale and retail, current as of the date of the closing and in 

a form satisfactory to LWC; 

7. Possession of the assets detailed in the Schedule of Assets at 

Exhibit B; 

8. Written affirmation of KWD's  representations and warranties; 

9. A certified copy of KTWD's Resolution authorizing the KTWD 

Commissioners to enter into and perform the terms of this 

Merger Agreement and further authorizing the Chair of the 

Board of Commissioners to execute this Merger Agreement on 

behalf of KTWD; 

I O.An opinion from KTWD's counsel, satisfactory in form to LWC, 

as to matters set forth in Section Six of this Merger Agreement - 
KTWD's Representations and Warranties; 

1 I .A list of all pending legal actions, including administrative, 

regulatory, civil, criminal and any other legal actions to which 

KTWD is a party, as well as a list of all agreements, including 

but not limited to contracts, to which KTWD is a party; 



12.Any such other documentation, at the closing or later if 

requested, as may be reasonably necessary to effect 

consummation of the transactions contemplated by andlor 

required by this Merger Agreement, including, but not limited to, 

transfer from KTWD to LWC of title to and ownership of the 

water distribution facilities and appurtenances thereto. 

B. Due from LWC to KTWD 

Unless KTWD produces a written waiver of any item listed herein, LWC 

shall deliver to KTWD at closing the following: 

1. A certified copy of LWC's Board of Water Works' Resolution 

authorizing LWC's president to enter into and perform the terms 

of this Merger Agreement, including acceptance of assets and 

liabilities listed in Exhibits B and C, respectively, pursuant to the 

terms of this Merger Agreement; 

2. A final offer of employment to each of the KTWD employees 

listed at Exhibit D offer contingent on execution of this Merger 

Agreement; said offer to include a position description, salary 

range, starting salary and provisions for leave and benefits; 

3. An opinion from LWC's counsel, satisfactory in form to KTWD, 

as to matters set forth in Section Seven of this Merger 

Agreement - LWC's Representations and Warranties. 

4. Written affirmation of LWC's representations and warranties. 

Section Nine - Defaults 

A. Default by LWC 

. If this Merger Agreement is not executed due to LWC's default hereunder, 

LWC shall compensate KTWD in the manner and to the extent set out in 

the Statement of Intent at Exhibit A. 



B. Default by K W Q  

If the Merger Agreement is not executed due to KTWD's default 

hereunder, KTWD shall compensate LWC in the manner and to the extent 

set out in the Statement of Intent at Exhibit A. 

C. Default by mutual agreement of LWC and KTWD 

If the Merger Agreement is not executed by mutual agreement of the 

parties, each party shall be solely responsible for its own expenses, as set 

out in the Statement of intent at Exhibit A. 

Section Ten - Miscellanesus Matters 
A. Risk of Loss 

After the Closing Date when LWC receives the assets and accepts any 

and all liabilities described at Exhibits B and C, (and, after approval of the 

Merger Agreement by the Kentucky Public Service Commission), the risk 

- of loss shall shift from KTWD to LWC; KTWD having borne exclusively the 

risk of loss during negotiation of the Merger Agreement in accord with the 

Statement of Intent at Exhibit A. 

B. Transfer of Customer Accounts 

KTWD shall conduct its final reading of all of its customers' meters prior to 

execution of the Merger Agreement; LWC agrees to accept KTWD's final 

reading on the consumption of each account as LWC1s beginning reading. 

The parties agree to work together on meter reading to assure a smooth 

transition of this process. Any payment for service rendered prior to the 

Closing Date and received after the Closing Date shall be deposited in the 

Bullitt County Water Reserve. 



C. Applications for Service Connections 

LWC will effect any water service connections after the Closing Date 

which KTWD has approved in the ordinary course of business and for 

which KTWD has been paid its usual and customary fees andlor deposits 

prior to the Closing Date; KTWD agrees to surrender to LWC any deposit 

paid by the customer, and LWC agrees to make no further charge the 

customer therefor. 

D. Other Payments to KTWD and Invoices Owed By KIWD 

Any other payments due to KTWD prior to the Closing Date and received 

within 90 days after the Closing Date shall be deposited into the Bullitt 

County Water Reserve; any invoices owed by KTWD in the ordinary and 

regular course of its business prior to the Closing Date and received within 

90 days after the Closing Date shall be paid out of the Bullitt County Water 

Reserve. 

E. Notices 

Any notices, requests, waivers or other communications required or 

permitted to be given under this Merger Agreement shall be in writing, and 

shall be delivered by hand or courier or US mail, postage pre-paid, and 

addressed to each party as set forth in this Merger Agreement with copies 

to parties' counsels at their then-current addresses. 

F. Entire Agreement 

This Merger Agreement, including the Statement of Intent previously 

incorporated herein by reference, supersedes all prior discussions and 

agreements between KTWD and LWC, with respect to this merger. All 

promises, inducements, offers, solicitations, agreements, commitments, 

representations, and warranties heretofore made between the parties are 

merged into this Merger Agreement. This Merger Agreement shall not be 

modified or amended except in a writing executed by both parties. 



Covenants, representations and warranties made in this Merger 

Agreement remain in full force and effect, surviving the closing. 

G. Headings and Captions 

All headings, captions, sections and section numbers and letters are 

solely for the purpose of facilitating reference to this Merger Agreement 

and shall not supplement, limit, or otherwise vary in any respect the text of 

this Merger Agreement, 

H. Successors and Assigns 

This Merger Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit 

of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

Nothing in this Merger Agreement shall be construed to create any rights 

or obligations except among and between the parties thereto, and no 

person or entity shall be regarded as a third party beneficiary of this 

Merger Agreement, with the exception of the Bullitt County Fiscal Court, 

which the parties acknowledge to have statutory authority to enforce the 

terms of this Merger Agreement. 

1. Indemnifications 

Each party agrees to indemnify and hold the other party harmless from 

claims made against it and expenses incurred in defense of same, 

resulting from one or more breaches of the representations, warranties, 

and covenants contained in this Merger Agreement. LWC acknowledges 

and accepts as a decision within the discretion of the Commissioners of 

the KTWD the indemnification provided by KTWD to its Commissioners 

and General Manager by Board Resolution dated November 4, 1999 for 

their acts in their official capacities as Commissioners and General 

Manager, a copy of which indemnification is included in this Merger 

Agreement at Exhibit P with said indemnification to cover those acts 

through and including the Closing Date; LWC agrees to provide the 



Commissioners and General Manager with Directors and Officers 

Insurance either by continuation of their current policy or by a new policy 

with substantially similar terms. The parties agree that LWC shall direct, in 

consultation with the indemnified person or persons, any litigation or 

threatened litigation arising from the indemnification described in this 

section (with said consultation to include the opportunity for indemnified 

person or persons to participate in the formulation of litigation strategy) 

and that any attorneys retained pursuant to the indemnification shall be 

selected by mutual agreement of LWC and the indemnified person or 

persons. The parties agree that any funding requirements attributable to 

indemnification of the Commissioners and General Manager (pursuant to 

KTWD's Board Resolution, directors and officers insurance as described 

above, or the indemnifications by LWC under the terms of this Merger 

Agreement), including the cost of legal representation, shall be drawn from 

the Bullitt County Water Reserve. The parties acknowledge that LWC's 

actions and decisions regarding indemnifications will be made on behalf of 

the KTWD ratepayers and with the best interests of those ratepayers in 

mind. 

J. Defense of Territory 

To the extent that, at the time of execution of this Merger Agreement, 

there exists any exclusive authority granted to KTWD to provide water 

service to the properties and residents of KTWD Division # I  and Division 

#2, LWC agrees to take reasonable steps necessary to preserve that 

exclusive authority, in LWC's discretion, w'ith the advice of the Bullitt 

County Advisory Board. 

K. Bullitt County Advisory Board and Bullitt County Extension 
Program Workgroup 

The parties agree that the Bullitt County Advisory Board as described at 

Paragraph 10 in the Statement and the Bullitt County Extension Program 



Workgroup as described at Exhibit 5 to the Statement, shall be modified 

as follows: 

1. Bullitt County Advisory Board 

Upon execution of this Merger Agreement, the Bullitt County 

Advisory Board, "BCAB", consisting initially of the three current 

KTWD commissioners (who shall serve on the BCAB for the 

remainder of their KTWD terms), shall be established. Thereafter, 

upon expiration of each commissioner's current term, the parties 

most respectfully request that the Bullitt County JudgeIExecutive in 

his discretion either reappoint the former KTWD commissioners to 

the BCAB or appoint successors, to four year terms. The BCAB 

shall provide advice and counsel to the Chairman of the LWC 

Board of Water Works, on issues related to KTWD service areas 

and the Bullitt County Water Improvement Program until that 

program has been completed, at which time the BCAB will 

automatically cease to exist. The BCAB shall meet quarterly to 

receive from LWC financial reports on the sources and uses of 

funds referenced in the Statement and in the Merger Agreement. 

Those financial reports from LWC shall include, annually, as part of 

LWC's annual financial audit and conducted by the same 

independent certified public accounting firm that conducts LWC's 

annual financial audit, an audit in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP). LWC shall direct this 

independent, certified public accounting firm to issue an Opinion 

Letter to the Board of Water Works on the subject of the 

management and accounting of the BCWR, which Opinion Letter 

shall also be provided to the Bullitt County Advisory Board. The 

BCAB shall, at its next regular quarterly meeting after presentation 

of LWC's Annual Audit to the Board of Water Works, receive both 

that portion of the annual audit reflecting activity within the BCWR 

as well as a copy of the independent, certified public accounting 



firm's Opinion Letter to the Board of Water Works regarding 

management and accounting of the BCWR. The Board members 

shall receive a stipend of $100 per month from the Bullitt County 

Water Reserve. 

2. Bullitt County Extension Program Workgroup 

Upon execution of this Merger Agreement, the Bullitt County 

Extension Program Workgroup, "Workgroup", shall be formed, to 

advise LWC on the direction of the Bullitt County Extension 

Program and future system improvements. LWC will appoint one 

member to the Workgroup. The parties most respectfully request 

that the Bullitt County JudgelExecutive in his discretion appoint to 

the Workgroup up to eight (8) members representing a broad cross 

section of the county, particularly unserved and underserved areas; 

among those eight members, at least one member should have 

expertise in each of the following fields: planning and economic 

development, fire protection, and federal, state and local 

government. Within six months after the Closing Date, the 

Workgroup is to develop a plan to make water service available to 

all Bullitt County residents over a ten-year period. Additionally, the 

Workgroup will evaluate funding from various sources including, but 

not limited to, water rates, connection fees, grants (federal, state, 

local), loans, system development charges, fire protection district 

tax hydrant fees, etc. The parties anticipate that the Workgroup will 

incorporate a review of the Bullitt County Comprehensive Land Use 

Plan and Public Infrastructure Policy into their ongoing activities. 

L. Rates for former KTWD Division #I and Division #2 

LWC shall charge rates for the former KTWD Division #1 and Division #2 

as set out in the Statement of Intent at Exhibit 6; rate equalizations with 



other LWC customers shall occur when the conditions listed in the 

Statement of lntent have been met. 

M. Service to Former KTWD Customers 

IWC reaffirms and reiterates its commitment to serve customers of the 

former KTWD Divisions #I and #2 equally with similarly situated LWC 

customers under LWC Service Rules and Regulations except that 

customers of the former KTWD Divisions #I and #2 will be subject to the 

rates and fees set out in this Merger Agreement and the Statement of 

Intent. 

N. Rate Equalization and Water Rates 

KTWD and LWC reiterate and reaffirm their agreement on water rates and 

their commitment to rate equalization, which agreement and commitment 

are set out in detail in the Statement of lntent at Paragraph I 1  and in the 

exhibits to the Statement of Intent, and specifically incorporated herein by 

reference. 

0. Funding and Interim Funding for BCWR 

In addition to provisions at Section Ten paragraphs B and D, KTWD and 

LWC agree that any balances in any KTWD accounts at the Closing Date 

shall be transferred to the Bullitt County Water Reserve. KTWD and LWC 

acknowledge that, from time to time, the Bullitt County Water Reserve (as 

that fund is defined in paragraph 9 of the Statement of lntent and further 

defined at Exhibit R to this Merger Agreement) will require interim funding 

by LWC, for purposes of cash flow and orderly financial management 

when, costs due to be paid out of that Bullitt County Water Reserve might 

otherwise exceed its balance. LWC is prepared to advance funds to the 

Bullitt County Water Reserve on an as-needed basis, at LWC's most 

recent long term borrowing rate including any closing costs and other 



costs imposed on LWC, with no additional fees or charges imposed by 

LWC. 

P. KTWD's Existing Wholesale Accounts 

The parties acknowledge that KTWD has certain wholesale accounts with 

North Nelson, the City of Shepherdsville, and the City of Lebanon Junction 

for potable water. For so long as the rate differential between former 

KTWD customers and Jefferson County LWC customers exists, the 

parties reiterate that, pursuant to Section I I of the Statement, that rate 

differential will be deposited in the Bullitt County Water Reserve. LWC 

further agrees not to re-negotiate those wholesale accounts in such a way 

as to reduce the amount of funding realized by the Bullitt County Water 

Reserve from those wholesale accounts as of the Closing Date. LWC 

agrees to consult with the Bullitt County Advisory Board on any future 

acqi~isitions affecting those KTWD current wholesale customers. The 

parties acknowledge that in the future LWC will continue to seek new 

wholesale customers and the parties agree that if service to any such new 

wholesale customer uses former KTWD infrastructure or former KTWD 

service territory, LWC will consult with the Bullitt County Advisory Board. 

Q. Sale or Lease of KTWD Assets 

The parties agree that, in the event of any sale or lease by LWC of assets 

conveyed, assigned or delivered to it by KTWD pursuant to the terms of 

this Merger Agreement for so long as the Bullitt County Advisory Board 

exists or the rate differential between former KTWD customers and 

Jefferson County LWC customers exists, LWC will deposit the same 

amount as the amount of any proceeds of any such sale or lease into the 

Bullitt County Water Reserve. The parties acknowledge that LWC1s 

Louisville Water Company Water System Revenue Bond Resolution 

Authorizing the Issuance of Water System Revenue Bonds, adopted July 

14, 1992, specifically Article VI Bond Covenants at Section 61 1, requires 



deposit of the proceeds of any such sale or lease into LWC's Depreciation 

Fund; therefore, the parties agree that LWC's deposit of the same amount 

as the amount of any such proceeds of any such sale or lease of assets 

will satisfy this provision. 

R. Supplemental Representations 

The parties agree that both parties may supplement their representations 

and warranties and exhibits to this Merger Agreement, during the time 

period between execution of this Merger Agreement and the Closing Date. 

The parties further agree that if the non-supplementing party considers the 

supplement to materially affect the value of the Merger to the detriment of 

the non-supplementing party, then the provisions set out in paragraph 

23(b) of the Statement shall apply, and the supplementing party shall pay 

the administrative costs of the non-supplementing party, up to the sum of 

$10,000, within thirty days of the date of the non-supplementing party's 

notice to the supplementing party of material detriment. 

S. Notice of Significant Actions During Interim Period 

The parties acknowledge that there will be a period of time between the 

execution of this Merger Agreement and the Closing Date, and both 

parties agree to provide notice to the other party of any action or event 

which may impair the value of an asset (by $10,000 or more) or increase a 

liability (by $10,000 or more) subject to this Merger Agreement, including 

but not limited to those assets and liabilities listed at Exhibits B and C. 

The parties agree that any such notice shall be provided within forty-eight 

(48) hours of the party's knowledge of that action or event. 



Wherefore, the parties to this Merger Agreement affix their signatures as 

of the date first hereinabove written. 

KENTUCKY TURNPIKE WATER DISTRICT 
-.-- 

Dan 
- 

Thibodeaux Commissioner 
8- 00 

<--//-2 oa 
Date 

LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY 
J A 
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Statement of Intent 

February 17,2000 



i ,  * LWC Contract No. E669 

STATEMENT OF INTENT 

This Statement of Intent, hereafter 'Statement", is entered into the / T~ day of 

~ $ Y u ,  PY ,2000,  by and between 
r-' 

KENTUCKY TURNPIKE WATER DISTRICT " W D n  

A Water-District Organized under KRS Chapter 74 

3396 Burkland Blvd. 

Shepherdsville, Kentucky 401 65 

AND 

LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY 

A Municipally Owned Corporation 

Governed by the Board of Water Works 

Pursuant to KRS 96.230 through 96.310 

550 South Third Street 

Louisville, Kentucky 40202 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS KTWD and LWC executed a certain lease agreement dated November 18, 1968 

governing LWC'S provision of water and system operation services within KlWD's Bullitt County 

service area, which lease agreement w a s  further defined by a settlement agreement between the 

parties dated October 21, 1975; 

WHEREAS LWC has operated the KTWD service area  known a s  Kentucky Turnpike Water 

District, Division No. 1 ,  W D ,  Division # I  ," continuousiy on behalf of KTWD since the  execution of 

said lease agreement; 

WHEREAS, the Kentucky Public Service Commission ordered the merger of KlWD and the Salt 

River Water District in 1993, which said merger formed KTWD Division $1 and KTWD Division #2 a s  

shown in the map as  Exhibit 1 to this Statement and incorporated herein by reference; and 
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WHEREAS LwC and KTWD a r e  now desirous of ending said lease  agreement  and entering into a 

merger  agreement (hereafter "Agreement"), and,  in furtherance of that desire ,  LWC and KTWD have  

entered into this Statement  of Intent: 

WITNESSETH: 

I .  KTWD affirrrs that the total assets of KTWD Division #I a s  of December 31, 1 9 9 8  a r e  s even  

million, eight hundred forty thousand,  nine hundred thirty five dollars ($7,840,935). KTWD affirms that  

t he  total assets of KTWD Division #2 a s  of December 31, 1998  a r e  five million, six hundred seventy  

thousand, eight hundred sixty three  dollars ($5,670,863). Prior to execution of t h e  Agreement,  KTWD 

will furnish audited financial s tatements  for t h e  period ending December 31, 1999  for KTWD Division 

#I and for KTWD Division #2. KlWD will also furnish to LWC a schedule of KTWD Division $81 and 

W D  Division #2 a s s e t s  and a list of customers,  which schedule  shall b e  by resolution of t he  KTWD 

Board of Commissioners, T h e  1999 Audited Financial S ta tements ,  the schedule of a s s e t s  a n d  the  list 

of customers shall supercede  in fona t ion  provided in this S ta tement  and  become a n  at tachment to 

t he  Agreement, fully incorporated therein. 

2. KNVD affirms that a s  of December  31, 1 9 9 8  its current liabiiities and  long term debt  for  KTWD 

Division #4 a r e  eight hundred thirty o n e  thousand,  o n e  hundred seventy three dollars ($831,173). 

KTWD affirms that as of December 31, 1 9 9 8  its current liabilities and long term debt  for KTWD 

Division #2 is two million, f i e  hundred seventy eight thousand,  seven hundred twenty six dollars 

($2,578,726). Prior to execution of t he  Agreement,  KT7MI) will furnish to  LWC written documentation 

for KTWD Division #I and for  KTWD Division #2 detailing e a c h  Division's debt  and  any a n d  all other  

outstanding liabilities, which documentatjon shall b e  by resolution of the W D  Board of 

Commissioners. The  written documentation shall supe rcede  the  s tatement  of debt  in this paragraph 

and become  an attachment to the  Agreement, fully incorporated therein. 
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3. KTWD affirms that it has  full authority, a s  granted by the Bullitt County Fiscal Court and 

~ngulated by the Kentucky Public Service Commission, to provide potable water in all areas  of Bullitt 

County, Kentucky, described a s  tCrWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2, excluding those areas 

served by LWC, the City of Mount Washington Water & Sewer Department, the City of Shepherdsville 

Water & Sewer Department, the City of Lebanon Junction Water & Sewer Department, the North 

Nelson Water District and the Fort Knox Military Reservation. This geo&-aphic area is more 

specifically shown on the map designated a s  Exhibit 1. 

4. For good and valuable consideration a s  outlined in this Statement, the sufficiency of which is \.J 
acknowledged by the parties through their assent to this Statement and evidenced by their signatures 

hereinbelow, LWC and KTWD agree to merge. This merger includes the transfer of all assets,  but is 

not limited to, the distribution system, pump stations, storage tanks, equipment, materials, cellular 

communication leases, property, easements, lien rights, developer contracts, tapping fee contracts, 

leases, contracts, grants, pending grants, construction reserve funds, operating reserve funds, and 

3missor-y notes. This merger includes the assumption of all liabilities from W D ,  including, but not I 

limited to all de.bt and contractual obligations of KNVD Division #I and K J W D  Division #2. As a result . 

of the merger, LWC shall be responsible for water service, management and ownership of the 

following: 

- KTWD Division # 1 and Division #2 service areas, a s  shown in Exhibit 1 ; 

- KTWD Division # 1 and Division #2 existing assets; 

- KTWD Division # I and Division #2 customer accounts; and 

- KNVD Division X. 1 and Division #2 liabilities. 

5. In consideration for the execution of the Agreement contemplated by this Statement, LWC will 

install, aver time, certain system improvements within the KTWD service area in Bullitt County. The " 

system improvements are described herein and se t  out more particularly in Exhibit 2, Exhibit 3 and 
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Exhibit 4 to this Statement. The  system improvements wili be  known a s  the Builitt County Water 

Improvement Program (BCWIP) and includes the following: 

a. 1-65 Transmission Main System, 

b. KTWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2 System Improvements, and 

c. The Bullitt County Extension Program (BCEP). 

6. LWC wili contribute $5 million to install 1-65 Transmission Main System, which includes 

transmission mains, pumping and storage to supply the 1-65 corridor to Lebanon Junction a s  

described in Exhibit 2, Table 1. This 1-65 Transmission Main System will be  funded by LWC, 

designated grants, construction reserve funds and associated fees  (connection fees, meter fees ,  etc.) 

for those customers connecting to the 1-65 Transmission Main System. Said 1-65 Transmission Main 

System will provide service to Shepherdsvilfe, Lebanon Junction, North Nelson Water District and any 

other municipality or wholesale customer to whom KTWD is contracted to provide potable water. 

LWC wili operate this Transmission Main System on the LWC 660 pressure plane which se rves  up to 

elevation of 550 feet a t  40 psi, 

7. The KlWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2 System Improvemenis will consist of: 

a.  LWC will install distribution system improvements consisting of water main improvements, 

hydrants, valves and grid ties in Division #I a s  described in Exhibit 3, Table I. 

These improvements will be funded from the Bullitt County Water Reserve (ses Paragraph 

9) and the System Development Reserve. 

b. LWC wiil install distribution system improvements consisting of water main improvements, 

hydrants, valves and grid ties in W D  Division #2 as described in Exhibit 3, Table 2. 

These improvements will be funded from the ~ull i t t  County Water Reserve ( s e e  Paragraph 

9) and the System Development Reserve. 

8. The Bullitt County Extension Program (BCEP) will consist of the following: 

a. LWC will install a Backbone System which includes transmission mains, pumping and 

storage to supply the unserved a reas  of Bullitt County a s  listed in Exhibit 4, Table 1. These  . 
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improvements will be funded from the Bullitt County Water Reserve (sez Paragraph 9) and 

the System Development Reserve. 

b. LWC will install distribution mains in those remaining unserved areas along public roads 

within KTWD Division #I and Division a. These distribution mains are more 

specifically listed in Exhibit 4, Table 2. The distribution mains along public roads will be 

funded from the Bullitt County Water Reserve (see Paragraph 9) and the System 

Development Reserve. Such distribution mains will only be installed where two thirds (23) 

majority of property owners along the portion of a pub(ic road petition LWC for a 

distribution main in form acceptable to LWC. 

c. LWC will install distribution mains in those unserved areas along private roads within 

KTWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2. These distribution mains are more specifically 

listed in Exhibit 4, Table 3. Private road distribution mains will be solely funded by those 

benefiting customers along the private road. LWC will assess service installation fees to 

each customer along a private road main in accordance with the LWC standard fee 

schedules. 

d. The public roads connection fee per customer is initially set at $5,450. This connection fee 

is subject to review by the Bullitt County Advisory Board (see Paragraph 10) for making 

recommendations to the LWC Board of Water Works for adjustments. Any customer may 

elect to pay a connection fee  by freely entering into a promissory note, a simple interest 

note at 8% per annurn interest for a 20 year period and no prepayment penalties, and a 

property lien with LWC. Promissory notes will be billed monthly, separate from the water 

bill. Additionally, service installation fees will be assessed to each customer in accordance 

with the LWC standard fes schedules. 

e. LWC will establish the Bullifr County Extension Program Advisory Workgroup (BCEP 

Workgroup) to advise on the direction of the BCEP and future system improvements, a s  

described more particularly at Exhibit 5 to this Statement and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

9. LWC shall establish a Bullitt County Water Reserve to fund the KNVD Division #I and KTWD 

Division #2 System Improvements and the Bullitt County Extension Program portions of the BCWIP. 

This reserve will be funded by KT\ND Division #I rate capacity, KTWD Division #2 rate capacity, 

grants, connection feees, system development charges, Bullitt County Government contributions, fire 
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protection district tax contributions and capital raised by LWC in the form of loans andlor bonds.  This 

reserve will be designated the Bullitt County Water Reserve (BCWR), The Bullitt County Advisory 

Board (See Paragraph 10) will advise LWC and LWC will manage the BCWR. For purposes of this 

Statement, rate capacity is defined a s  the difference between the LWC water rates and the water 

rates (surcharge) of KNVD Division $1 or the difference between the LWC water rates and the  water 

rates of KTWD Division $2. 

10. A Sullitt County Advisory Board (hereafter "BCAB") shall be established upon execution of the  

Agreement anticipated by this Statement. The  BCAB shall be comprised initially of three current 

KTVVD Commissionep, who shall serve an  initial minimum term of five years, subject to 

reappointment by the Bullitt County JudgelExecotive, The Bulli.tt County JudgelExecutive shall 

appoint repkmment  and successor  BCAB members to serve three year terms also subject to  re- 

appointment by the Bullitt ~ o u n t y  JudgelExecutive. The BCAB shall provide advice and counsel to 

the LWC Board of Water Works on issues related to K i W D  service areas  and the BCWIP, until the  

SCWlP has  been completed, a t  which time the BCAB will automatically cease  to exist. BCAB 

members also shall receive a n  expense stipend of $1 00 per month from the  BCWR. LWC will provide 

BCAB members with insursnce coverage and will cover the cost of legal representation for their pas t  

acts a s  KTWD Commissioners and  for their acts a s  members of the BCAB. The insurance coverage,  

legal representation and stipend will b e  funded from the  BCWR. 

1 'I. LWC and W D  agree to the water rates and charges and terms described by the following 

with corresponding rate and fee  schedules s e t  forth in Exhibit 6 to this Statement and incorporated 

herein by reference, for the KTWD service area shown in Exhibit I, said water rates and charges  and  

terms to be in effect until such time a s  the improvements listed in Exhibit 3, Exhibit 4 and any such 

other M u r e  improvements which may be identified at a later date, a re  completed. Upon completion of 

the improvements listed in Exhibit 3, Exhibit 4 and any such other improvements as jointly identified 

by LWC and the Bullitt County Advisory Board, estimated a t  12 - 15 years, or when the KTWD water 
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rates equal the LWC water rates, all KTWD water rates and fees will be equalized to the LWC water 

rates and fees then in effect. 

a. The existing KTWD Division #I surcharge ,will be added to the  LWC service charge,  by 

service and meter size, and added to the LWC commodity charge a s  approved by the  

LWC Board of Water Works. This service charge and commodity charge will apply to all 

customers, current and future, within the service area designated a s  KlWD Division #I 

until water rates are equalized. Exhibit 6 ,  Table 1, provides a schedule of the water rates 

for MWD Division 91 customers using the LWC 2000 retail rateschedule.  An example of 

a KTWD Division #.1 billing is shown in Exhibit 6, Table 3. 

b. The existing KTWD Division #2 water rates will remain unchanged until the water rates a re  

equalized with LWC water rates. These water rates will apply to all customers, current and 

future, within the service area  designated 2s K W D  Division #2. Exhibit 6, Table 2 ,  

provides the  KTWD #2's 2000 rate schedule of water rates for KTWD Division #2 

customers. An example of a K W D  Division #2 billing is shown in Exhibit 6, Table 3. 

c. The LWC system development charge (SDC) will apply to all new water mains installed 

after the execution of the Agreement. Fire service connections, connections to mains 

installed prior to the execution of the Agreement and the initial water service connection 

made to serve properties identified in the BCWIP a s  listed in Exhibits 2, 3 & 4 will be  

exempt from the  System Development Charge. The SDC will be used for system 

improvements such a s  main upsizing, storage tanks, booster pump stations, and grid ties 

,in Bullitt County. The current SDC fee schedule is shown in Exhibit 6 ,  Table 4. 

d. Revenues from the KTWD Division #1 service charge, the KTWD Division #2 rate capacity 

and commercial or wholesale water rates in excess of the LWC water rates will be held in 

the BCWR duly designated for the KTWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2 system 

improvements and the  BCEP portions of the BCWIP. SDC collections from the KTWD 

service area in Bullitt County will be heid in a separate System Development Reserve 

account designated for system improvements in Bullitt County until the water rates a re  

equalized. 

12. LWC will offer employment to all KTWD full time employees, upon consummation of t h e  

merger anticipated by this Statement; said ~rnployrnent offers shall include benefits and salary or  

wages consistent with those  of LWC employees in similar classifications. In the interim period 
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between acceptance of this Statement and execution of the Agreement anticipated by the Statement, 

KTWD agrees to a hiring freeze on full time employees, except upon consent of LWC, with said 

consent not to be unreasonably withheld. 

13. KlwD agrees to disclose to LWC and to fully and finally resolve any matters pending or 

outstanding or otherwise unresolved before the Public Service Commission (if any there be), including 

compliance with rulings, decisions, and orders, and payments of fines, fees-and penalties, prior to the 

date the ~ g r e e m e n t  is executed. 

14. The parties agree to cooperate with each other and to assist each other a s  necessary to 

satisfy the terms of this Statement and to facilitate, expedite and accomplish the Agreement 

anticipated by and referenced in this Statement, including, but not limited to, the following: KTWD will 

fake all adions necessary to dissolve KTWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2 (including, but not 

limited to any necessary KRS 74.11 0 petition to the Bullitt County JudgefExecutive), and W D  

Commissioners will facilitate the Bultitt County Fiscal Court approva'l of a grant to LWC of the right or 

~rcense, with no current or future franchise, operating fess, or permit fees from Bullitt County Fiscal 

Court or any other Bullitt County Government Authority, to provide water service to those areas within 

Builitt County described a s  KTWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2. This geographic area is more 

specifically shown in Exhibit 1. Additionally, the parties agree to conduct this preliminary work to 

facilitate, expedite and accomplish the Agreement exciusiv~ly with each other and that neither party 

all engage in talks, discussions, communications, negotiations or the like with any other water utility r"i "-9 in regard to water service in KTWD Division #1 and KlWD Division #2. The parties intend that after 
0 

execution of the Agreement anticipated by this Statement, the Bullitt County Fiscal Court will take any 

action necessary to accomplish dissolution of the KTWD Division #I and K7WD Division #2 and 

I authorization of any necessary grant, approval or license to LWC to provide water service to those 

areas within Builitt County identified a s  ~JWD Division #I and K?WD Division #2. 
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15. The parties acknowledge that  the Agreement described herein is subject to the  review and 

approval of the KTWD Commissioners, Bullitt County Fiscal Court, and the Kentucky Public Service 

,ommission, a s  well a s  by the  Board of Water Works of the Louisville Water Company. T h e  parties 

further acknowledge that LWC shall not be obligated to perform a s  outlined herein without the express 

approval of the Board of Water Works a s  evidenced by the signature of LWC's President. 

16. The parties agree that this Statement, when fully executed, shall obligate the parties to engage 

in good faith, exclusive negotiations to  develop the Agreement anticipated by and referenced in this 

Statement, including, in substantial part, the terms and conditions outlined in this Statement, including 

its Exhibits. 

17. This Statement constitutes the entire agreement of t h ~  pariies on their intent to negotiate the 

Agreement the terms of which a re  anticipated by and referenced in this Statement. 

18. All risk of loss, damage  to, or destruction of the assets  subject to this Statement shall belong 

+Q and shall be borne exclusively by KTWD until execution of the  Agreement anticipated by and 

referenced in this Statement. 

19. LWC, its agents and employees may visit and/or view the asse t s  or any part or parcel thereof 

a t  any time and from time-to-time prior to the actual merger, and may conduct such inspections, field 

tests, surveys, engineering evaluations, etc. as it deems desirable. 

made 20. Each party hereto agrees  to indemnify and hold the other party harmless from cln 

against the  other party and expenses  incurred in defense of s a m e  resulting from one or more 

breaches of the representations, warranties and covenants contained in this Statement. 

21. All captions, headings, sections, section numbers and letters and other reference numbers or 

letters a re  solely for the purpose of facilitating reference to this Statement and  shall not supplement, 

limit or o thewise  affect in any way the text of this Statement. 
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22. LWC and KTWD anticipate the following C.ourse of Events. 

a. The Statement is executed by March 1, 2000. 

b. The respective due  diligence period will commence from the date of execution of the 

Statement. 

C. The Agreement is to be  reviewed, finalized, approved and executed by July 1,  2000. 

d. The BCEP Workgroup will be established and conduct its first meeting within three months 

of the execution of the Agreement. 

e. Construction of those mains identified by the BCEP Workgroup are anticipated to start 

within six months of the receipt of direction from the BCEP Workgroup. 

23. Miscellaneous. 

a.  The Statement of Intent and the Offer for the Merger of KTWD into LWC will be void if the 

Agreement is not executed by both KJWD and LWC on or before July 1, 2000, unless 

such date is extended in writing by mutual agreement. 

b. Failure to execute the Agreement. 

- In the event the KTWD and LWC hereto fail to execute the Agreement by July 1, 2000, 

or by a subsequent date mutually agreed to and specified by the KTWD and LWC, and 

such failure is due  to, based upon, or occurs a s  a result of the mutual agreement of the 

and LWC, action by the Public Service Commission (PSC), or any intervening 

factor beyond the reasonable control of either W D  or LWC, then each party will bear 

its own administrative costs, including attorneys fees, incurred in pursuit of matters 

outlined herein. 

- Should failure to execute the Agreement be due to the unilateral decision of either 

m D  of LWC, the party s o  deciding will pay the administrative costs of the other 

party, including attorneys' fees, incurred in pursuit of matters outlined herein, up to the 

amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000). 

- If the KNVD and LWC do not execute the Agreement, for whatever reason, they will, 

nevertheless, immediately begin good faith negotiations to develop t e n s  and 

conditions governing LWC's acquisition of KTWD #1 service area. 
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c. If the parties do not execute the Agreement, for whatever reason, they will, nevertheless, 

immediately begin good faith negotiations to develop terms and conditions governing 

LWC's acquisition of KTWD #I service area. 

d. LWC will operate the system to meet all applicable Kentucky Division of Water regulations 

for public water supplies. 

e. Bulli.tt County will cooperate with LWC in providing permits for water mainlservice 

construction and maintenance. 

f. Any requests to KTWD for water main extensions, new contracts, or system improvements 

made after the execution of this Statement and before the Agreement is executed must be 

reviewed and commented upon by LWC. 

g. Operating income from the Zoneton cell site leases will be deposited into the BCWR until 

such time the BCWIP is complete. 

h. Proceeds from any sale of the KT\ND offices located at 3396 Burkeland Boulevard will be 

deposited into the BCWR to assist in funding the BCWIP. The LWC anticipates using the 

KNVD offices as a Bullitt County Distribution and Customer Service Center and does not 

anticipate the sale of this asset. 
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness the signatures of the Kentucky Turnpike Water District 

3 the Louisville Water Company by their duly authorized officials as of the day herein above written. 

KENTUCKY TURNPIKE WATER DISTRICT 

Dan Thibodeaux, Commissioner 
d-  IT -  3x3- &c 

Date n 

P- 
Attest 

& 

Date 

$2? /7 2uoa 
Date 

Attest 1 
. U A C U  

Y 

Date 
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i .  + LWC Cootracr NO.  ~ b b ~  

STATEMENT OF INTENT 

This Statement of intent, hereafter uStatemenY', is entered into the / 7& day of 

c w.+ ,2000, by and behhfeen 
r' 

KENTUCKY TURNPIKE WATER DISTRICT "ICTWD" 

A Water-District OrganiZ~d under KRS Chapter 74 

3396 Burkland Blvd. 

Shepherdsville,. Kentucky 401 65 

AND 

LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY 

A Municipally Owned Corporation 

Governed by the Board of Water Works 

Pursuant to KRS 96.230 through 96.31 0 

550 South Third Street 

Louisville, Kentucky 40202 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS W D  and LWC executed a certain lease agreement dated November 18, 1368 

governing LWC's provision of water and system operation services within KIWDJs Bullit; C0un"iy 

service area, which tease agreement was further defined by a settlement agreement between the 

parties dated October 21, 1975; 

WHEREAS LWC has operated the KTWD service area known as  Kentucky Turnpike Water 

District, Division No. 1, ' W D ,  Division #I ," continuously on behalf of KTWD since the execution of 

said lease agreement; 

WHEFIWS, the Kentucky Public Service Commission ordered the merger of KTWD and the Salt 

River Water District in 1983, which said merger formed K l W D  Division #I and KTWD Division #2 as  

shown in the map as Exhibit 1 to this Statement and incorporated herein by reference; and 
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WHEREAS L,WC and KTWD are now desirous of ending said lease agreement and entering into a 

merger agreement (hereafter "Agreement"), and, in furtherance of that desire, LWC and KTWD have 

iltered into this Statement of Intent: 

WITN ESSETM: 

1. kTWD affirms that the total assets of KTWD Division #I a s  of December 31, 1998 are seven 

million, eight hundred forty thousand, nine hundred thirty five dollars ($7,840,935). KTWD affirms that 

the total assets of KTWD Division #2 a s  of December 31, 1998 are five million, six hundred seventy 

thousand, eight hundred sixty three dollars ($5,670,863). Prior to execution of the Agreement, KTWD 

will furnish audited financial statements for the period ending December 31, 1999 for KT\dVD Division 

#I and for KTWD Division #2. KTWD will also furnish to LWC a schedule of KTWD Division $1 and 

KTVVD Division #2 assets and a list of customers, which schedule shall be by resolution of the KTWD 

Board of Commissioners. The 1999 Audited Financial Statements, the schedule of assets and the list 

of customers shall supercede information provided in this Statement and become an attachment to 

the Agreement, fully incorporated therein. 

2. KTWD afirrns that as o i  December 31, 1998 its current liabilities and long term debt for KTWD 

Divisian #I are eight hundred thirty one thousand, one hundred seventy three dollars ($831,173). 

KTWD affirms that a s  of December 31, 1998 its current liabilities and long term debt for W D  

Division $2 is two million, five hundred seventy eight thousand, seven hundred twenty six dollars 

($2,578,726). Prior to execution of the Agreement, KTWD will furnish to LWC written documentation 

for KNVD Division #I and for KTWD Division #2 detailing each Division's debt and any and all other 

outstanding liabilities, which documentation shall be by resolution of the KTWD Board of 

Commissioners. The written documentation shall supercede the statement of debt in this paragraph 

and become an attachment to the Agreement, fully incorpor- dted therein. 
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3. FCTV\rD ~ff irms that it has full authority, as granted by the Bullitt County Fiscal Court and 

regulated by the Kentucky Public Service Commission, to provide potable water in all areas of Bullitt 

unty, Kentucky, described as KiUD Division #I and KiWD Division #2, excluding those areas 

served by LWC, the City of Mount Washington Water & Sewer Department, the City of Shepherdsviile 

Water & Sewer Department, the City of Lebanon Junction Water & Sewer Department, the North 

Nelson Water District and the Fort Knox Military Reservation. This area is more 

specifically shown on the map designated as Exhibit I. 

4. For good and valuable consideration as outlined in this Statement, the sufficiency of which is 

acknowledged by the parties through their assent to this Statementand evidenced by their signattires 

- hereinbelow, LWC and W D  agree to merge. I his merger includes the transfer of all assets, but is 

not limited to, the distribution system, pump stations, storage tanks, equipment, materials, cellular 

communication leases, property, easements, lien rights, developer contracts, tapping fee conk2Ct5, 

leases, contracts, grants, pending grants, construdion reserve funds, operating reserve funds, and 

promissory notes. This merger inciudes the assumption of all liabilities from W D ,  including, but not 

,.,, ~ited to all debt and contractual obligations of KTWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2. As a result 

of the merger, LWC shall be responsible for water service, management and ownership of the 

fallowing: 

- KTWD Division # I and Division #2 service areas, as shown in Exhibit 1; 

- KIWD Division # 1 and Division #2 existing assets; 

- KTWD Division # I and Division $2 customer accounts; and 

- KTWD Division # 1 and Division $2 liabilities. 

5. In consideration for the execution of the Agreement contemplated by this Statement, LWC will 

install, aver time, ceriain system improvements within the KTWD service area in Bullitt County. The "a 

system improvements are described herein and set out mort particularly in Exhibit 2, Exhibit 3 and 
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Exhibit A 40 this Statement. T h e  system improvements will be known a s  the Bullitt Coui'kj' w a t e r  

Improvement Program (BCWIP) and indudes the following: 

a. 1-65 Transmission Main System, 

b. KTWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2 System Improvements, and 

c. The Bullitt County Extension Program (BCEP). 

6.  LWC will contribute $5 million to install 1-65 Transmission Main System, which includes 

transmission mains, pumping and storage to supply the 1-65 comdor to Lebanon Junction a s  

described in Exhibit 2, Table I. This 1-65 Transmission Main System will be funded by LWC, 

designated grants, construction reserve funds and associated fees (connection fees, meter fees ,  etc.) 

for those customers connecting to the 1-65 Transmission Main System. Said 1-65 Transmission Main 

S y s t ~ m  will provide service to Shepherdsville, Lebanon Junction, North Neison Water District and any 

other municipality or wholesale customer to whom MTWD is contraded to provide potable water. 

LWC will operate this Transmission Main System on the LWC 660 pressure plane which serves up to  

an  elevation of 550 feet a t  40 psi. 

7. The ICiWD Division #-I and KTWD Division $2 System Improvements will consist of: 

a. LWC will install distribution system improvements consisting of water main improvements, 

hydrants, valves and grid ties in KTWD Division X1 as described in Exhibit 3, Table I. 

These improvements will be funded from the Bullitt County Water Reserve (sea Paragraph 

9) and the System Development Reserve. 

b. LWC will install distribution system improvements consisting of water main improvemenis, 

hydrants, valves and grid ties in K i W D  Division #2 a s  described in Exhibit 3, Table 2. 

These improvements will be funded from the ~ u i l / i t  County Water Reserve ( see  Paragraph 

9) and the System Development Reserve. 

8. The Bulliii County Extension Program (BCEP) will consist of the following: 

a. LWC will install a Backbone System which includes transmission mains, pumping and 

storage to supply the unserved a reas  of Bullitt County a s  listed in Exhibit 4, Table 1. These 
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improvements will be funded irom the Bullitt County Water Reserve ( s e ~  Paragraph 9) and 

the System Development Reserve. 

b. LWC will install distribution mains in those remaining unserved a reas  along public roads 

within W D  Division #I and KTWD Division $2.. These distribution mains are more 

specifically listed in Exhibit 4, Table 2. The distribution mains along public roads will be 

funded from the  Bullitt County Water Reserve (see Paragraph 9) and the System 

Development Reserve. Such distribution mains will only be installed where two thirds (Z3) 

majority of property owners along the portion of a public road petition LWC for a 

distribution main in form acceptable to LWC. 

c. LWC will install distribution mains in those  unserved areas  along private roads within 

KTWD Division #I and KTWD Division #2. These distribution mains are more specif cally 

listed in Exhibit 4, Table 3. Private road distribution mains will b e  solely funded by those  

benefiting customers along the private road. LWC will a s s e s s  service installation f e e s  to 

each customer along s private road main in accordance with the LWC standard fee 

schedules. 

d. The public roads connection fee per customer is initially se t  a t  $5,450. This connection fee - 
is subject to review by the  Bullitt County Advisory Board ( see  Paragraph 10) for making 

recommendations to the LWC Board of Water Works for adjustments. Any customer may 

elect to pay a connection fee by freely entering into a promissory note, a simple interest 

 not^ a t  8% per annum interest for a 20 year period and no prepayment penalties, and  a 

p ~ p e r i y  lien with LWC. Promissory notes will be billed monihly, separate from the  water 

bill. Additionally, service installation fees will be assessed  to each customer in accordance 

with the LWC standard fee schedules. 

e. LWC will establish the  Bullitt County Extension Program Advisory Workgroup (BCEP 

' Workgroup) to advise on the directjon of the BCEP and future system improvements, a s  

described more particulariy at Exhibit 5 to this Statement and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

9. LWC shall establish a Bullitt County Water Reserve to h n d  the KNVD Division f 1 and  KTWD 

Division #2 System Improvements and the Bullitt County Extension Program portions of the BCWIP. 

7-1;s r ~ s e r v e  will be funded by KTWD Division #A rate capacity, KTWD Division if2 rate capacity, 

grants, connection fees,  system development charges, Bullitt County Government contributions, fire 
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protection district tax contributions and capital raisgd by LWC in the form of loans andlor bonds. This 

reserve will be  designated the Bullitt County Water Reserve (BCWR), The Bullitt County Advisory 

Soard (See Paragraph 10) will advise LWC and LWC will manage the BCWR. For purposes of this ' 

Statement, rate capacity is defined as the difference between the LWC water rates and the water 

rates (surcharge) of KIWD Division $1 or the difference between the LWC water rates and the  water 

rates of K l W D  Division $2. 

10. A Buflitt County Advisory Board (hereafter "BCAB*) shall be established upon execution of the 

Aareement anticipated by this Statement. The BCAB shall be comprised initially o? three current 

KTWD Commissione.~,  who shall serve an initial minimum term of five years, subject to 

reappointment by the Builitt County JudgelExecutive. The Bullitt County JudgeExecutive shall 

appoint replacement and successor BCAB members to serve three year terms also subject to  re- 

appointment by the Bullitt county  JudgeIExecutive. The BCAB shall provide advice and counsel to 

the  LWC Board of Water Works on issues related to KTWD service areas and the BCWIP, until the 

BCWlP has  been completed, a t  which time the BCAB will automatically cease  to exist. BCAB 

zmbers also shall receive an e x p e n s i  stipend of $100 per month from the BCWR. LWC wili provide 

BCAB members with insurznce coverage and will cover the cost of legal representation for their pas t  

acts a s  KNVD Commissioners and for  their acts a s  members of the BCAB. The insurance coverage,  

legal representation and stipend will be funded from the BCWR. 

11. LWC and W D  agree  to the water rates and charges and terms described by the  following 

with corresponding rate and fee  schedules se t  forth in Ghibit  6 to this Statement and incorporated 

herein by reference, for the  KTWD service area shown in Exhibit I ,  said water rates and charges  and 

terms to be in effecf until such time as  the  improvements listed in Exhibit 3, ~ x h i b i t  4 and any  such 

other Nurs improvemecits which may be identified a t  a later date, are completed. Upon compleiion of 

the  impr0vements listed in Exhibit 3, Exhibit 4 and any such othgr improvements a s  jointly identified 

by L'NC and the Bullitt County Advisory Board, estimated a t  12 - 15 years, or  when the KTWD water 

-vent of Intent 
Nary 2000 

Page 6 of 12 



rates equal the  LWC water rates, all KTWD water .rates and fees will be equaliz5d to the LWC water 

rates and fees  then in effect. 

a. The existing KTWD Division $1 surcharge will be added to the LWC service charge,  by 

service and meter s i re ,  and  added to the LWC commodity charge a s  approved by the  

LWC Board of Water Works. This service charge and commodity charge will apply to all 

customers, current and future, within the service area designated a s  KTWD Division $1 

until water rates are  equalized. Exhibit 6, Table 1 ,  provides a schedule of the water rates 

for KTWD Division $1 customers using the LWC 2000 retail rat; schedule. An example of 

a KIWD Division #I billing is shown in Exhibit 6, Table 3. 

b. The existing KTWD Division #2 water rates will remain unchanged until the water rates a re  

equalized with LWC water rates. These water rates will apply to all customers, current and 

future, within the  sewice  a rea  designated a s  KPJVD Division #2. Exhibit 6, Table 2, 

provides the KTWD #2's 2000 rate schedule of water rates for K l W D  Division #2 

cusiorners. An example of a KTWD Division $2 billing is shown in Exhibit 6, Table 3. 

c. The LWC system development charge (SDC) will apply to all new water mains installed 

after the execution of t h e  Agreement. Fire service connections, connections to mains 

installed prior to the execution of the Agreement and the initial water service connection 

made to serve properties identified in the BCWIP a s  listed in Exhibits 2, 3 & 4 will be 

exempt from t h e  System Development Charge. The SDC will be used for system 

improvements such a s  main upsizing, storage tanks, booster pump stations, and grid ties 

,h Bullitt County. The current SDC fee schedule is shown in Exhibit 6 ,  Table 4. 

d. Revenues from the #NVD Division #I service charge, the KrWD Division #2 rate capacity 

and comrnerciat or wholesale water rates in excess of the LWC water rates will be held in 

the 8CWR duly designated for the K W D  Division #I and KTWD Division #2 system 

improvements and t h e  BCEP portions of the BCWIP. SDC collections from the K W D  

s ~ + ~ i c e  area in Bullitt County will be held in a separate System Development Reserve 

account designated for system improvements in Bullitt County until the  water rates are  

equalized. 

12. LWC will offer employment to all KTWD iull time employees, upon consummation of t h e  

merger anticipated by this Statement; said ~mployrnent oiiers shali include benefits and saiary or 

wages  consistent with those of LWC employe& in similar c/assifications. In the interim period 
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between acceptance of this. Statement and execution of the Agreement anticipated by the  Statement, . 

W D  agrees to a hiring freeze on full time employees, except upon consent of LWC, with said 

3nsent not to be  unreasonably withheld. 

13. KTWD agrees to disclose to LWC and to fully and finally resolve any matters pending or 

outstanding or otherwise unresolved before the Public Service Commission (if any there be), including 

compliance with mlings, decisions, and orders, and payments of fines, fees-and penalties, prior to the 

date the Agreement is executed. 

24. t h e  parties agree to cooperate with each other and to assist each other a s  necessary to 

satisfy the te rns  of this Statement and to facilitate, expedite and accomplish the Agreement 

anticipated by and referenced in this Statement, including, but not limited to, the following: KTWD wiil 

take all actions necessary to dissolve K l W D  Division $1 2nd KTWD Division #2 (including, but not 

limited to any necessary KRS 74.1 10 peti.tion to the Bullitt County Judge/Executive), and W D  

Commissioners will facilitate the Bullitt County Fiscal Court approva't of a grant to LWC of the right or 

wse, with no current or future franchise, operating fees, or permit fees from Bulliti County Fiscal 

Court or any other BulliSt County Government Authority, to provide water service to those areas  within 

Bullitt County described a s  KNVD Division #I and Knn/D Division #2. This geographic area is more 

specifically shown in Exhibit 1, Additionally, the parties agree to conduct this preliminary work to 

facilitzte, expedite and accomplish the Agreement exdusively with each other and that neither party 

d a l l  engage in talks, discussions, communications; negotiations or the like with any  other water utility 

1 -j, in regard to water service in KNVD Division #I and KTWD Division #2. The parties intend that after 
0 

execution of the Agreement anticipated by this Statement, the Bullitt County Fiscal Court will take any 

action necessary to accomplish dissolutjon of the KTWD Division #I and KTWD Division and 

authorization of any necessary grant, approval or license to LWC to provide water service to those 

areas  within Bullitt County identified as ICNVD Division #I and KTWD Division $2.. 
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"I 5. T h e  parties acknowledge that  the Agreement described herein is subject to the  review and 

approval of the W D  Commissioners, Bullitt County Fiscal Court, and the Kentucky Public Service 

ommission, a s  well as by the  Board of Water Works of the Louisville Water Company. The  paiiies 

further acknowledge that L\NC shall not be obligated to perform a s  outlined herein without the express 

approval of the Board of Water Works a s  evidenced by the signature of LWC's President. 

16. The parties agref! that this Statement, when fully executed, shall obligate the parties to engage 

in good faith, exclusive negotiations to  develop the Agreement anticipated by and referenced in this 

Statement, including, in substantial part, the terms and conditions outlined in this Statement, including 

its Exhibits. 

I T .  This Statement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties on their intent to negotiate the 

Agreement ihe terms of which ar6  anticipated by and referenced in this Statement. 

18. All risk of loss, damage  to, or destruction of the assets subject to this Statement shall belong 

to and shall be borne exclusively by KTWD until execution of the Agreement anticipated by and 

.'erenced in this Statement. 

19. LWC, its agents and  employees may visit and/or view the asse t s  or any part or parcel thereof 

a t  any time and from time-to-time prior to the actual merger, and may conduct such inspestions, field 

tests, surueys, engineering evaluations, etc, a s  it deems desirable. 

20. Each party hereto a g r e e s  to  indemnify and hold the other party harmless from claims made 

against the other party and  expenses  incurred in defense of same resulting from o n e  or more 

breaches of the representations, warrznties and covenants contained in this Statement. 

21. All captions, headings, sections, section numbers and letters and other reference numbers or 

letters are  solely for the purpose of facilitating reference to this Statement and shall not supplement, 

limit or otherwise afieci in any  way the text of this ~ t i t e m e n t .  
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22. LWC and KTWD anticipate the following Cpurse of Events. 

a. The Statement is executed by March 1, 2000. 

b. The respective due diligence period will commence from the date of execution of the 

Statement. 

c. The Agreement is to be reviewed, finalized, approved and executed by July I, 2000. 

d. The BCEP Workgroup will be established and conduct its first meeting within three months 

of the execution of the Agreement. 

e.  Construction of those mains identified by the BCEP Workgroup are anticipat~d to start 

within six months of the receipt of direction from the BCEP Workgroup. 

23, Miscellaneous. 

a. The Statement of Intent and the Offer for the Merger of K?WD into LWC will be void if the 

P,greernent is not executed by both KTWD and LWC on or before July 1, 2000, unless 

such date is extended in writing by mutual agreement. 

b. Failure to execute the Agreement. 

- In the event the KTWD and LWC hereto fail to execute the Agreement by Juiy 1, 2000, 

or by a subs~quen t  date mutually agreed to and specified by the KTWD and LWC, and 

such failure is due to, based upon, or occurs as a result of the mutual agreement of the 

" ' and LWC, action by the Public Service Commission (PSC), ar any intervening 

factor beyond the reasonable control of either KTWD or LWC, then each party will bear 

its own administrative costs, including attorneys fees, incurred in pursuit of matters 

outlined herein, 

- Should failure to execute the Agreement be due to the unilateral decision of either 

or LWC, the party so deciding will pay the administrative costs of the other 

party, including attorneys' fees, incurred in pursuit of matters outlined herein, up to the 

amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000). 

- If the KTWD and LWC do not execute the Agreement, for whatever reason, they will, 

nevepheless, immediately begin good faith negotiations to develop terms and 

conditions governing LV\IC's acquisition of KTWD #I service area. 
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c. If the parties d o  not execute the Agreement, for whatever reason, they will, nevertheless, 

immediately begin good faith negotiations to develop terms and conditions governing 

, LWC's acquisition of KTWD #I service area. 

d. LWC will operate the  system to meet all applicable Kentucky Division of Water regulations 

for public water supplies. 

e. BulIitt County will cooperate with LWC in providing permits for water m a i n l s e ~ i c e  

construction and maintenance. 

f. Any requests to KTWD for water main extensions, new contracts, or  system improvements 

made after the execution of this Statement and before the Agreement is executed must be 

reviewed and commented upon by LWC. 

g. Operating income from the Zoneton cell site leases will be deposited into the BCWR until 

such time the  BCWIP is complete. 

h. Proceeds from any sale of the KllpJD ofjices located a t  3396 Burkeland Boulevard will be 

deposited into the  BCWR to assist in funding the  BCWIP. The LWC anticipates using the 

KTWD ofr?ces as  a Bullitt County Distribution and Customer Service Center and d o e s  not 

anticipate the sale of this asset .  
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness the signatures of the Kentucky Turnpike Water District 

w d  the Louisville Water Company by their duly authorized officials as of the day h e r ~ i n  above written. 

KENTUCKY TURNPIKE WATER DiSTRlCT - P 

17 

Dan Thibodeaux, Commissioner 
&, 

Date 

Date I 

YdA --hi. k A C U  
Attest Y 

r&. 17, 2-0 
Date 
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EXHIBIT 1 
Map of KMlD Division #I & Division #2 Senrice Areas 
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EXHIBIT 2 
LWC 1-65 Transmission Improvements, installations "& Other Improvements 

Table 1 - 1-65 Transmission System improvements 

* -To be verified prior to execution of the Agreement. 
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EXHIBIT 3 
KTWD Division $1 and KTWD #2 System ~ r n ~ r o v e m e n ~ t s  

- Table I - Existing KTWD # I System Improvements * 

tic Booster Pump Station 

* - TO b e  verin'ed prior to execution of the Agreement. Subject to resizing to meet Hydraulic Analysis 
requirements. 

Table 2 - Existing KTWD # 2 System lmprovernenk * 

* - TO be verified prior to execution of the Agreement. Subject to resizing to meet Hydraulic Analysis 
requirements. 
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EXHIBIT 4 
Bullin County Extension Program [BCEP) - Backbone Improvements, Installations & Other Improvements 

Table 4 - Backbone Transmission Main System * 

Highway 44 Main from Martin Hill Rd. to Mt. Eden Church 
Rd. 

Mt, Eden Church Rd. Main from Highway 44 to F t  Knox Boundary 
Average of one fire hydrant 
for 1,00(J A. of public; road Fire 75O gpm @ z0 psig 

minimum capacity Hydrants N A mains . - 
I I 

LWC Valves for System Operation 1 valves 6' izla 1 NA 

* - To be verified prior to execution of the Agreement. Subjed to resizing to meet Hydraulic Analysis 
requirements. 

Table 2 - Unsarved Public Road Builitt County System lmprovem~nts " 
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EXHIBIT 4 
Builitt County Extension Program (BCEP) - Backbone Improvements, Installations & Mher Improvements 
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EXHIBIT 4 
Buliitt County Extension Program (BCEP) - Backbone Improvements, Installations & Other Improvements 

- - I 1 -  

Wilderness Tr 1 Country Manor Ln I Main ( 3,000 [ 8" 
Average of one "-- ' I 111c: iryuranr 
for 7,000 ft. of public road Fire 'fv%h 750 gpm @ 20 psig 
mains minimum capacity 

/ Hydrants / 5' 1 -M-l 

LOCATION 

. . -. . - Lick Skillet - -  To Big Spring Rd Main I 1.500 8" 

PIPE 1 SIZW CAPCITY STREET 
W. Indian Stone Rd 

Table 3 - Unsarved Private Road Bullitt County System Improvements 

LENGTH 
(Ft) DESCRIPTION 

. . . - . . , - 
Various as determined by 
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Valves for System Operation LWC Valves 1 12. 

I I 

' -TO be ve'nfled prior to execution of the Agreement. Subjed to resizing to meet ~ ~ d n u i i c  Analysis 
requirements. 
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EXHIBIT 5 
Bullitt County Extension Program Workgroup 

Composition and Duties of the Bullitt County Extension Program Advisory Workgroup 

The Bullitt County Extension Program Advisory Workgroup (BCEP Workgroup) is formed in order to 

advise LWC on the direction of the BCEP and future system improvements. 

1. The Bullitt County Extension Notigroup will be comprised of members representing the former 

KIWD Commissioners (2), Bullitt County Fiscal Court (2), Bullitt County Pianning (I), Bullitt 

County Health Department (I), Bullitt County Fire Protection Districts (I), Bullitt County state 

legislators (21, City of Lebanon Junction (I), City of Mount Washington (1), the City of 

Shepherdwille (I) and LWC (I). 

2. The Bullitt County Extension Workgroup is to develop a plan within six months of execution of the 

Agreement to make water service available to all Bullitt County residents over a ten year period. 

Additionally, the Bullitt County Extension Workgroup will evaluate funding from various sources 

including, but not limited to, water rates, connection fees, grants (federal, state, local), loans, 

system development charges, fire protection district tax hydrant fees, etc. 

3. The Buflitt County Extension Workgroup will incorporate a review of the Bullitt County 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Public Infrastructure Policy into their ongoing activiijes. 
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EXHfBIT 6 
Water Rate and Fee Schedul'es 

Table 1 - LWC 2000 Retail Rate Schedule including KTWD Division #? Customers 

2000 WATER RATES 

LOUISVILLE WATER COMPANY 
LOUISVILLE, KENTUCKY 

BOARD OF WATER WORKS RULES AND REGULATIONS 

6.00 RATES 

6.01 For the purpose of classifying revenues, and t o  provide for different classes of rates, there shall be 
established seven (7) classes of customers and t w o  (2) areas of service. 

The classes of customers shall be identified as: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Fire Service 
Fire Hydrants 
Municipal 
Wholesale 

The areas of service shall be identified as: 

Retail Service Area 
KT District served by the Company through leased facilkies 

"The rate charge for metered weter service shall be comprised of three components except for 
municipal dustorners as defined in KRS 96.270 who shall be served as provided therein a t  no c o n  to 
the customer and publicly owned fire hydrents: 

(1 ) A service charge based on the size of the meter through which the customer receives such 
service, and 

(2) A commodity charge based on the amount of watar consumed, and 

(3) An elevared service area surcharge If applicable in Rule 6.02.3. 

6.02.1 Service Charge 

The service charge fo r  classes of customers taking matered service and situated within the R e t d  
Service Ares or the K7Disuicr shall be cherged in accordance with the following schedule: 

Meter Size 
Servica Charge 

Monthly Bill 

Statement of Intent 
17 February ZOO0 



EXHlBlT 6 
Water  Rate and Fee Schedules 

6.02.2 Commodity Charge 

The commodity charge for monthly usage for customers within the Retail Service Area or the KT 
District shall be computed in accordance with the following schedule: 

Thousand Gallons 
Per Month 

First 3 at $ 1.44 Per 7,000 Gallons 
Next 3 at $1.59 Per 1,000 Gallons 
Next 194 at $1 -83 Per 1,000 Gallons 
Next 1,300 at $1.71 Per 1,000 Gallons 
Next 3,500 at $1.52 Per 1,000 Gallons 
Next 5,000 at $1.15 Per 1,000 Gallons 
All Over 10,000 at $1.09 Per 1,000 Gellons 

6.02.3 Uevsted Service Area Surcharge 

All customers shall pay a surcharge of $0.19 per thousand gallons if water must be deliverEd at a higher elevation 

than the general pressure plane served by the Crescent HllUCardlnal HIIl System. 

6.03 Wholesale Customers 

Wholesale customers which purchase water for resale wherever situated shall be charged: $1.1 6 per 
thousand gallons for all water purchased, the elevated service area surcharge specified in Rule 
6.02.3, if applicable, and the servica charge specified in Rule 6.02.1. 

6.04 Fire Servica Charges 

The charge for fire service, where water may be bkeii for fire proteaion only, shall be in accordance with the 

iollowing schedule. This charge will also be applicable to such fire hydrants as may be prnvided by private agencies. 

Size - 
Monthly 
Charge 

At the Company's option, bills may be rendered monthly or bimonthly. 

In the event that payment for any charge is not made within twenty (20) days from the billing date, 
the net amount of the bill shall be inweesed by 5% and the gross amount thus determined must be 
paid. One late payment will be accepted every twelve (12) billing periods at net amount ii the bill is 
paid before the next billing date, 

6.07. Where water is used without proper authorization, the estimated quantity of unmetered weter used 
shall be paid for at the rate of 910.00 per thousand gallons. 

6.08 Water taken from a Louisville Water Company publlc fill statibn sheil be paid for a t  the rate of $2.50 
Per thousand gallons plus such deposits as may be established from time to time. 

Upon adoption, these rates shall become effeafve and apply to  statements mailed on and after 
January 7, 2000. 

Statement of Intent 
17 February 2000 
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EXHIBiT 6 
! I "  Water Rate and Fee Schedules 
I i 
I i 

Table 2 - KTWD Division #2's 2000 Rate Schedule 

Kentucckv Turn~ike Warm Dktiict - Division n 

FOR Bullin Countv. Kmnich - Division R 
P.S.C. Ky. No. 1 
First Revised Shmt Na. 1 

CanceIing P.S.C. Ky, No. 1 
Original Sheet No. 1 

51'8 inch and 3 4  inch co&atioa 
First 
* - 2,000 
Next - - 3,000 
N e a  5,000 
Next 1.5,00(5 
Over 25,000 

1 inch connection 
First 5,000 
Next 5,000 
Next I 5,000 
Over 25,000 

1-16! inch to  4 inch connection 

First 10,000 
Next 15,000 
3ver 25,000 

3em.hei.m Forest 

$15: 67 Monthi y Minimum 
$4.75 per 1,000 gallom 
4.27 per 1,000 gallons 
4.04 per 1,000 galions 
3 -55 per 1,000 gdIom 

$29.92 Mondily Minimum Q) (N) 
4.27 per 1,000 gallons 

. 4.04 per 1,000 gallons 
00'0 

3.55 per 1,000 gallons 
O O  
fr) Cr9 

$51.27 Monthly Minimum m OY puBUC S ~ ~ C E  C O M M ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ , ~  
4.04 per 1,000 gallons 0 OF K&nic,yV 

mgv) 
E i C ~ E c ~ v E  3.55 per 1,000 gallons 

$1 00.00 per month 

tKi June 30. 1499. Casc No. 98-398 

Statement of Intent 
- 77 February 2000 
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EXHIBIT 6 
Water Rate and Fee Schedules 

! 

Table 4 - LWC 2000 System Development Charge Schedule 

Service Size Fee 

%" $700 

4" %17,500 

6" 8 Larger Negotiated 

The System Development Charge (SDC) is payable for service conneitions to water mains Listalied 
after J ~ w  1, 1992, unless the main was identified in the County-wide Watei Extension P m m .  

Statement of Intent 
I7  February 2000 



EXHIBIT B 

SCHEDULE OF ASSETS AGREED TO BY THE.PARTIES 
(INCLUDING INVENTORY OF PERSONAL PROPERTY) 

TO BE PROVIDED ON THE CLOSING DATE, BY AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES 



EXHIBIT C 

LIST OF "ASSUMED LIABILITIES" 

TO BE PROVIDED ON THE CLOSING DATE, BY AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES 



EXHIBIT D 

LIST OF K M D  EMPLOYEES 
(WITH CURRENT POSITIONS AND LWC CONTINGENT OFFERS OF EMPLOYMENT) 



EXHIBIT B 

NAME 
Ray Abell 
Jean Clark 
Don Dowell 
Cynthia Klein 
Tom Metcalf 
Viola Toney 

List of KTWD Employees 

KTWD POSITION LWC PLANNED POSITION 
District Manager Resource Coordinator 
Water Accounts Coordinator Customer Service Clerk I 
Backhoe Operator General Laborer, Union 
General Clerk Engineering Clerk I 
District Foreman Construction Inspector I 
Administrative Assistant Accounting Clerk I 



Kentucky Turnpike Water District 
3396 Burkland Blvd., Shepherdsville, KY 40165 

Office - 955-928 1 or 955-7564 
Fax - '957-6724 

AklB, Way 



EXHIBIT E 

MAP OF KNVD DIVISION #I AND DIVISION #2 



- Succtn 

Caunly S o u n d d ~ s  

Watsr Di lncls 

FORTKNOX 

$@$: KEKRlWTURNPlKE WATER DISTRICT DlVlSlON Ul 
,:.. . 
$&&?$ K E N N W  TURNPIKE WATER DISTRICT DIVISION UZ 
.q:f%;:L: <.:, ;G~ LEBANON JUNCTION 

LOUISblLLE WATER COMPANY 

ISTRICT DIVISION #1 AND LIT. WASHINGTON 



EXHIBIT F 

1-65 Transmission Main System 



REK 7/31/00 
Rev 811 1/00 

EXHIBIT F 

COMMENTS 

Replace 6" & 8" along Hwy 1020 

Cut across easement at curve 

Pipe to tank 

KT to ~nstall, value of $620,328+ Engr fees 

Funded by proposed USEPA Grant of %380,000 

3 MGD capaclty 
1.5 MGD capaclty 

LWC to pay to upsize from 12" 

YEAR 

2001-2002 

2001 
2001 
2001 
2001 

2000 

2000-2001 
2000-2001 

2000 
2000 

2000 

TABLE ?: 1-65 TRANSMISSION MAIN SYSTEM 

UNIT 
COST 

$70 

$50 
$210 
$210 
$50 

ESTIMATED 
COST 

r $584,500 

$260,000 
$14,700 
$21,000 
$30,000 

$0 

PIPE SIZE 

16" 

Hwy 480 Bypass 

2000 ILWC to buy from Salt River Development 
2004 1 

LENGTH 
FEET 

8,350 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

LS 

$70 

$50 
I 

2002-2003 

2001 

2001 
2001 
2000 

2003 

2000 
2000 

k lw  61ICoopers Run 
Tie for gap 

Rose Turlock 

Cedar Grove Tank 
Addlt~onal Storage Tank 

East of 1-65 

Ex~stlng KT Llne 
New Bypass piping 

$700,000 
$750000 
$763,000 

$0 
$210,000 

$290 1 

$70 

LS 

parallels 1-65 

Ex~sttng KT pipe under 1-65 

Assumes 3T Const change order for needed sect 
KT has b~ds  25 subscriber fees @ $75,000 

New 12" main parallels exlst 8" 

EDA Grant funded 
EDA Grant funded 

Funded by Lebanon Junction, includes Master M 

Gapln-Knob Imp 

Lebanon Junction Prolect 
(North Portlon) 

USEPA Project $87,000 
$315 000 ---- 
$200,000 
$120,000 

$50,000 

TO 

Hwy 1526 

LOCATION OR ITEM 

National Turnpike 
I 

5,200 ] 12" 
70 24"casing 

Hwy 61ICoopeffi Run 
H y  61 
Hwy 61 

Cedar Grove Road 
Peaceful Valley 

Cedar Grove-Shep lndust Park 

FROM 

Laltevlew Dnve 

100 
600 

13,050 

300 

16" 

12" 
12" 

Hwy 61 

east slde 
tank 

Salt River 12" Water Maln 

Nat~onal Tump~lte 

24"caslng 

16" 

30" cascng 

$640,000 

$0 
$0 

$81,000 
$0 

$5,430,200 

10,900 

800 
, 4,200 

New 500,000 gallon elev tank 
New 1.000,000 gallon 

S end of 16" in Shep Park 

16" LWC Pipe 
KTs 12" Under 1-65 

Hwy 2673 

$275.000 
554,000 

$275,000 

3 F 692' 

Marn ln Chapeze 

Bypass plplng 
Hwy 61 

16" parallels existing 12" 

Hwy 480 BPS 
Cedar Grove Business Plc BPS 

12,800 

8,750 
1,000 
5,400 

12" 

12" 
12" 

8" to 12" 

Ratlroad Cross~ng___ ' 

end of Tom Brown prolect 

5,500 
1,800 
9.400 

16" 

! 

H~gnway 251(Belmont) 

Hwy 733 
Sandeffi Lane 

Hwy480 B ass 
South end of Co&ers Run , County Road 1494 

$50 

$0 
$0 
$ 15 

1 12" 
12" 
12" --- 

Belmont Sect~on 

Lebanon Junct~on Prolect 
(South Porlion) 

H v  61 Crosslng 
Gap-ln-Knob Tank Feed 

Waterline- west stde of park 
I 

South end of Coo ers Run 
N end of Rose TurloE~ sectlon 

9,400 feel north of C R 1494 

$50 
$30 
LS 

Sanders Lane I Lebanon Junctlon Boundary 
I 

-- 
Hwy 1020 

klwy 61 

1 

6,200 1 8" to 12" 
I 

Sanders Lane 

Hwy 61 

Hwy 61 
Hwy 733 

Hwy 1113, Oak Street $0 

Total for Exhib~t F Table 1 

County Road 1494 

Hwy 251, end of exist 8" main 

Hwy 61 

East of and adlacent to 165 

Salt Rlver Crossfng 

16" 

1 1 

H y  733 

Hwy 61 

5,500 Buffalo Run 

Lebanon Junctlon Boundary 

Cedar Grove tank 



EXHIBIT G 

KTWD Division #I and Division #2 
System Improvements 



EXHIBIT G 
TABLE 1: KTWD DIVISION #I SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 

I 
Brooks Hill Road 
Cedar Creek Road 
Slave Mill Road 
Pitts Polnl South Supply 
Oreland Easement 
National Turnpilte 

f 

YEAR 

Lakevlew Drive 
Highway 44 
Raymond Road 
Raymond Road 

1 I 

ESTIMATED I 

I i 

Highway 1020 to Willabroolc 
Grid Tie from end of existing 8" pipe to Zoneton Rd.' 
Grid Tie from end of existing 8" to Zoneton ~ d . '  
Beech Grove Rd to Pilts Point ~ubdiv ls ion~ 
Grid Tie Connector from Oreland Mill Rd to Zoneton Rd. 
Counly Road 1526 to County Road 2673 

Sandy I-lill/lakeview Drive 
Brooks Hill #I . 
Zonelon 
Cabln Creek 
Pryor Valley 
Oak Point 

REK revised 811 1/00 

UNIT 

I I 

Fire Hydrants 
Line Valves 

STREET NAME OR ITEM 

1,900 Ft 
1.150 Ft 
- 

1 .I 50 Ft 
3,500 Ft 
9,000 FI 
11.000 Ft 

Replace from National Turnplke to Ban~cks Lane $60 $330,000 
Replace and upstre from Raymond Road lo Pltts Point Rd $60 $226.920 
Replace maln from Chilicoop Road to Highway 44 $538,200 

Replace and upsize from Chilicoop Road soulh to end of main $127,800 

Add Hydro-Pneumatic Booster Pump Station and plplng 
Improve the access to Booster Pump Station 
Upgrade the existing Booster Pump Station 
Booster Pump Station- Waterproof, add sump, replace hatch and hydro-tanks. 
Booster Pump Station- Waterproof, add sump, replace harch and hydro-tanks. 

2001-2002 
2004 
2003 
2003 I 

To avg. 1,000'lhyd, the total need is 512, excsting number 100~ 
To avg. 1.500'/vaalve, the total need is 341, existing number 3974 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

Total for Exhibit G, Table 1 

System Development Charge lo fund grid ties and main upsizing. 
'includes Creek Crossing I 

'Includes Salt River Crossing 
'Based on number from 1999 PSC Report plus 25% renovation. 
'Based on number from 1997 Engineering Evaluation Report plus 25% renovation. 

COST , COST DESCRIPTION 

2003 
2003 
2003 
2003 
2005 

2004-2005 

I I 

Booster Pump Station- Waterproof, add sump, replace hatch and hydro-tanks. I 1 

377 
100 

$3,995.920 

$30,000 
$15.000 
$15,000 
$10.000 
$10,000 

QUANTITY 

$95,000 
$63,250 
$63.250 
$227,500 
$450,000 
$880,000 

12" $50 

2001-2002 
2001-2002 
2001-2002 
2001-2002 
2002-2002 

I $10,000 

2.000 
1,500 

MAIN SIZE 

8" 
8" 
12" 
12" 

2001-2002 

$55 
$55 
$65 
$50 

$754,000 
$150,000 

16" I $80 

2001-2005 
2001-2005 



EXHIBIT G 1 

revised 811 1/00 
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EXHIBIT H 

Bullitt County Extension Program Improvements 
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I EXHIBIT H 
TABLE 3: BCEP DISTRIBUTION MAINS IN KTWD DIV. #1, PUBLIC ROADS 

STREET NAME I DESCRIPTION LENGTH MAIN UNIT COST ESTIMATED UNSERVED BELOW 550 
FT. SIZE $In. COST RESIDENCES ELEV 

Prepared by: REK 5/8/0 
Revised: 0811 2/00 
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I EXHIBIT H I 
1 TABLE 4: BCEP DISTRIBUTION MAINS IN KTWD DIV. #2, PUBLIC ROADS I 

STREET NAME DESCRIPTION LENGTH MAIN UNIT COST ESTIMATED UNSERVED 
FT. SIZE $IFT. / COST RESIDENCES ELNAT'ON 

I 

Prepared by: REK 51810 
Revised: OBM 1100 
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EXHIBIT M 
TABLE 7: UNSERVED BULLITT COUNTY ROADS IN OTHER WATER DISTRIC'TS 

COMMENTS 

BY NORTH NELSON 

BY NORTH NELSON 

BY NORTH NELSON 

BY GIN OF LEBANON JUNCTION 
BY NORTH NELSON 

BY NORTH NELSON 

BY NORTH NELSON 
BY NORTH NELSON 
BY CITY OF LEBANON JUNCTION 
BY NORTH NELSON 

BY SHEPHERDSVILLE 
BY NORTH NELSON 

BY CITY OF LEBANON JUNCTION 
BY NORTH NELSON 

BY CITY OF LEBANON JUNCTION 

LENGTH FT. 

1,300 

2.700 

7.500 

3.100 

3,200 

4.000 

30.000 

5,500 

10,600 

3.500 

1,900 
2.600 

2,000 

2.200 

4,000 

84.100 

STREET NAME 

RUSTIC LANE 

BOHANNON LANE 
BROWNINGTON RD 

CEDAR SPRINGS 
CRENSHAW RD 

DEATSVILLE RD 
HWY 1604 

LUTZ LANE 

OLD BOSTON RD 
OVERHILL DR 

REICHMUTH LN 
SALT LICK 

SAMUELS FARM RD 

S. DOWNS LANE 

STREBLE FARM LN 

Tolal for Exhibit H, Table 7 

DESCRIPTION 

BROWNINGTON RD TO END 

L U R  LANE TO END 
HWY 480 TO HVW 1604 
OLD BOSTON RD TO END 
WOODSDALE TO END 

HWY 1604 TO COUNTY LINE 
HWY 480 TO HWY 245 
WOODSDALE TO COUNTY LINE 

HWY 733 TO LEBANON JUNCTION 
HWY 480 TO END 

HWY 1494 TO END 
BROWNINGTON RD TO END 

OLD BOSTON RD TO END 

LUTZ LANE TO END 

COLLINGS HILL RD TO END 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Board of Commissioners 
Kentucky Turnpike Water District 
Division I 
Shepherdsviile, Kentucky 

We have audited the accompmying balance sheets of Kentucky Tunpike Water District Division I 
as of December 31,1999 and 1998, and the related statements of income, ie'iained earnings, and 
cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements u e  the r~onsr i ld i ty  of the 
Division's managemwt. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these hanckl skakmmts 
based on o w  audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing sianciards. Those 
standuds require h i  we plan and p d o r m  the audit to obtain resonable xsunnce about 
whethe. the h c i a l  statements are hee of m a t e d  misstatement. An audit indudes examining, 

a test basis;eddmce supporting the amounts and disclosures in the £immdal statements. A n  
ad i t  also indudes assessing the accounting prindples used and s i m c a n t  estimates m d e  by 
manageaient, as well as evaluating the overall £inand statement presentation We believe that 
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our op&an, the k d a l  statements referred to abwe present fairly, in all mated  respects, the 
financial position of Kentucky Turnpike Waiu Dishid Division I a s  of December 31,1999 znd 1998, 
and the results of its opera.tions and its cash flows for the years then mded in conformity with 
senerally accepted accouniing prinaples. a 

1.0 

Gow-e, Chizek and Company L V  

LouisviUe, Kentucky 
February 25,2000 



IcENTLTCKY TURNpME WATER DISTRTCT 
D r n O N  I 

,'- BALANCE Sl3I2ETS 
December 31,1999 and 1998 

ASSETS 
Currat assets 

Operating b d ,  cash and cash quiva lab  
Notes receivable 
Other assetzi 

Total current assets 

Utility plant 
DepreciabIe property in swrice, at cost 
Less ac-ulakd depredation 

Land and improvements 
Construction w0r.k in pprogress 

TotaI utility plant 

Restricted assets 
Depreciation and Improvement Fund 
Bond !%mice Fund 
Bond Timerve Fund 
Cons.truction Fund 
Fort Knox deposit 

Total restricted assets . 

Unamoicizql debt expense 

Total assets 

L L P I . B m 5  AND OTHER CREDITS 
Cmeni  1iabiIities ' 

Accrued interest payable 
~ e ~ b s i t s  to be refunded 
NOH payable, ment portion 
Bonds payable, current portion 

Total mat liabilities 

Long-term debt, non-current portion 

Contriitions in aid of construction 

Total liabilities a;nd other credits 

! 

See accompanying notes. 



m m T t T R N P J X E  WArnDISTRIcT 
DIVISION I 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
Years ended December 31,1999 and 1998 

Operating revenue 
Surcharges collected 

A A 

Commissioners' fees and expenses 
PSC assasmat 
Professianal fees 
GEce and supplies expense 
Salaries and payroll taxes 

Totd operation expenses 

Depreciation 
Amortization 

Total ope~atlng expenses 

Net operating revenue 

Non-opexting income (exxensej 
Interest on hestments 
Interest expense 
R e n d  income 

Totdl nonaperating expense 

Net income 

i -- 
4 notes. See accompanyin, 



D W O N  I 
STAT- OF R l Z I ' m D  EiARND?GS 

Years ended December 31,1999 and 1998 

Retained earnings. January 1,1998 

Net income 

Retained e ~ ~ g s ,  Decmber 31,1998 

Net income 

RetaineO e d g s ,  December 31,1999 

'.. 

See accompanying notes. 



K E l u T U m  TLJpNrW WATERDISITRICST 
DNISI0E.T I 

f STA- OF CASH FLOWS 
Years ended December 31,1999 and 1998 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from customers and others 
Cash paid to suppiiers and others 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Construction of utility plant (539,690) (51,290) 
Cash contributions m aid of cons.truction 1,473,653 169,286 
Note principal payments (13,771) (13,136) 
Bond prindpd payment (55,000) (50,000) 
hterest paid on bonds and notes (50,188) (53.991) 

Net cash used in capital and rdated fimndng activities 815,004 869 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest received 

Vet increase in cash md cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalmts, inclu&g $812,995 
and $300,320, respectively, in restricted 
funds, beginning of yeu  

Cash and c s h  equivdenb, incluhg $1,977,275 
and $812,935, respectively, in restricted 
funds, end of year 

i 

(Continued) 



KEWTUCXY TLJXNPm WATER DISTRICT 
D r n O N  I 

STATEMENTS OF CAW FLOWS 
Years ended December 31,1999 and 1998 

~econci l ia t ion of net operating revenue to  -- - 
cash flows h r n  operating activities: 

Net operating revenue $ 205,515 $1'73,148 
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenue 
to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 96,721 93,662 
Amortization 3,705 3,705 
Non-operating income 8,400 0. 

Increase (decrease) in cash due to changes in assets 
and liabilities: 

Notes receivable 
Deposits to be refunded 

Total adjustments 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

See accom~a-nyhg notes, 



%3WTUCKY T U R N " p ~  WATER DISTRICT 
DNTSION I 

.-- NOTES TO FIN~NCIP,L STATEMENTS 
f December 31,1999 and 1998 

NOTE 1 - S W A - R Y  OF S I G i Y E f ~  ACCCKJNTING POLICES 

Descripiion of the Business: Kentuw Turnpike Water District Division I (the Division) is a 
provider of water to cosllmercial and residential consumers in Bullitt County. 

The Kenmcky Turnpike Water District and Salt River Water District merged on Febnrary 10,1993. 
Und- the terms of the agreommt, the Districts are designated as Kentucky Turnpike Water 
Distrid Divisions I and 11, respectively, and operate as Kentucky Turnpike Water M d  

As a result of the mergw, Kentucky Turnpike Water District Division I acquired certain assets 
from Division II. In lieu of a dkect payment for the assets, Division I assumed (to the extent of the 
purchase price) Division Es obligation on iti note and bonded m d e b t e k s  to the Kmtudcy 
bhastructure Au&o* as disclosed in Note 5. The divisions retained their respedive 
current customers and corresponding retail rates and tariffs a s  set forth in the merger a g r e e m t  

The Division is funded by a surcharge levied against each customer w i h  the distrid in an . 
amount determined as necessa-j to meet the r e q u i t e m b  of the variaus furids a s  &p&ted in 
the Bond Ordinance and Lease. The Lease is with Lorlisville Water Company and covers fne 
entire water dis'iribution system for a term of forty years, terminating in October 2010. 

Tnder the t e r n  of the lease, L,orlisville Water Company, in return for the revenue derived from 
servicing the wata customers of the Division, is obligated to o~erate  the water district at its 
expense, to serve the Wet with an adequate water supply and to instaIl new services at the 
expense of &e customer upon customer applicafion 

h addition, Louisville Water Company serves as frwtee for the Division for the surcharges 
collected for bonded indebtedness service and re*ement. LouisvilIe Wzter Company determines 
the required surcharge a a m t  each January 1. 

Method of account in^ The DivisionJs accounting policies conform to gmezally accqted 
accounting prindples for water utilities. Although the Company is not subject to regulation, the 
accounts are maintained in accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed by the 
National Pssaciation of Regulatory UBity C o d s i o n e r s .  

The Division is considered a component unit of the City of Shepherdde  and foollows the 
accounting standards issued by the Governmatal Accounting Standards Board. 

(Continued) 



Ic;ENTUCKY TURNPm WATER DISTRICT 
D r n I O N  I 

NOTES TO FINANCLAL STA- 
December 31,1999 and 1998 

I 
,OTE 1 - S W Y  OF SIGWIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conthued) 

Estimates in the F h d  State.tnmts: The preparation of fimxial statements in conformity with 
generally accqted acmunting priruiples requires mnagement to make estimates and 
zssumptions %at affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the fimnial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results c d d  differ from those estimates. 

Deurechtiox The Division applies the strright-line method of depreciation to the e~tirnakd 
useful lives of the various classes of depreciable property. Estimated useful lives of some of the 
si@cant categories of assets are as follows: 

Metas 
Fire hydrants 
Storage facilities 
Boosts equipment 
Services 
Mains 

30 years 
50 years. 
50 years ' 

50 years 
60 years 
100 yevs 

Depredation is computed on additions begkming January 1 of the year aft=  tion on 

TJnamotiized Debt Erpense: Expenses incuiied in comedian with the bsuance of the outstanding 
2nd~ are being mortized over the life of the bond issue. 

S b t e m a b  of Cash ROWS: For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Division considers all 
highly Liwd in~estmenti purchased with a maturity of thee  months or l s s  to be ush  and cash 

Contribuiiom in Rid &Com.truction: Contdmtions in aid of construction represent the nan- 
refmdable cost of utility plant additians paid for by customers. 

- 
I 

(Continued) 



-- 

DNlSION I 
NOTES TO FINANU4L STATEMENTS 

December 31,1999 and 1998 

NOTE 2 - PUXCHASE AG-IS 

Louisville Water Company: Under the terms of a S e ~ e m e n t  Agreement executed in 1975 among 
the Louisville Water Company, Bullitt Water Company, and the Kentucky Turnpike Water 
District Division I, the Division has an  option to purchase from Louisville Water C o m p q  
anytime October 6, 2010, all customer accounts in h i  portion of the previo&ly d q m t ~ d  
area awarded to the Division Ii the option is exercised, the Division must p i i d m e  the Louisvlne 
Water Company's fadEries located within and serving the Division. If the option is not exercised 
before October 5 ,  2010, it will be considered exercised on that date. If the option had been 
exe.dsed on December 31. 1999, the Division would have been reqvired to pay $434,140 to 
Louisville Water Company for its hcilities. 

CiW of Shepherdsde: The Division has entered inta an agreement with the City of 
SnepherdsviUe to proYide water to the City through October 2016. 

As stated in Note 1, LouisviAe Water Company FWC) leases the a t i r e  water distribution system 
of the Division and LWC will therefore sell water to the City througln the remaining term. of its 
lease with the Division ending October 2010. The City has agreed to pay LWC far the aedit  of the 
Division, a monthly sicharge of $864 to satisfy the Division's bond issue c o v m t s .  Upon 
termination of LWC'S lease, the City will pay directly to ihe Division as billed according to the 
'hen applicable charges undndei the Division's rate schedule for water sqplied to fhe City over the 

mining term of the wata  purchase agreements. 

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AE?D C4SH EQIJTYALENTS 

Denosits: At December 51,1999 md 1998, the carying value of the Division's cash, indudkg 
restricted cash was 5956,670 and $293,695, respectively, and the bank bdvice was $916,347 md 
$294,625, respectively. In 1999 and 1998, $776,000 was insured through the Federal Deposit 

Cash Equivalents: The Division's cash equivalents of $l,E~8,000 and $633,005 at December 31, 
1999 and 1998, respectively, were invested in Certificates of Deposit and held by the Division's 
m t o d i d  bank in the Division's name. The =tire balance was insured by the Federal Deposit 
i w u r e c e  Corporation and g o v m e n t  secxiri;ies provided as collateral by the banks. The 
market value of such certificates approximated cost 

\ - 
(Continued) 



KENTUCKY TURNPIKE WATER DISTRICT 
DNISTON I 

NOTES TO FINAWCIAL STATEMWS 
December 31,1999 and 1998 

NOTE 4 - RESTRlCTED ASSETS 
Pursuant to the Bond Ordinance authorking the 1968 water revenue bonds, the following funds 
were established: 

De~rechiion and h r o v e m e n t  Fund: Tfiis fund receives the bdance of m b g e s  collected afhEtr 
required deposits to the Bond Service Fund and Operating Fund, and is to be used for making 
extensions of and improvements to the watu. system of the District. The required minimum 
addition to h e  fund is 1% per year of the capital value of the system and fzdlities then existing. In 
addition, any comedon fees are deposited into this fund 

Bond Service Fund: This fund is for the payment of principal and interest due each year on the 
outstanding bonds and is funded from the sm&mges collected. 

Bond Reserve Fund: Under the tenns of the Bond Qrdinance, fhis fund is required to be 
maintained at amount at least equal to the maximum annual interest required to be paid 
d k g  one year. The n-hixnurn required a u n t  was $41,250 and W,375 in 1999 and 1998, . 
resp &~ely. 

C o n s ~ c u o n  Fund: This fund was established by a District Commissioner's resolution to receive 
pzyments made for the construction and extension of utility plant assets. 

Fort &ox Deposit: This amount represents a deposit by Fort Knox to be utilized for the extension . 

of water s d c e  into that a r a .  An offsetting amount is recorded in Contributions in Aid of 
Construaion Zf the extaxion is not performed, the deposit m d  arty accrued irrteresk w% be fully 
refundable. 

At December 31,1999 and 1998, restricted assets of these funds were as follows: 

Depreciation 
and Bond 

Improvement Service 
Fund - 

Cash $ 161,466 $ 1,585 
Certificatzs of 
deposit 465,000 98,000 

Bond Cons'ruc- 
Reserve tion 
Fund 
7 

Fund - 
Fort 
Knox 

Devosit 

(., - 
(Continued) 



KEmm TURNPIKE WATER DISrnCT 
DM510N I 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STA-S 
,- December 31,1999 and 1998 

, 

NOTE 4 - RESrJSlCED ASSmS (Continued) 

Depreciation 
and Bond Bond Constolc- 

Improvemat Sepnce Reserqe tion , 

Fund - Fund Fund . -  Fund Total 

- Cash 
C d c a t e s  of deposit 

NOTE 5 - LONG-TEM DEBT 

In D e c d e r  1968, the Division issued $1,200,000 in bonds for the c a ~ c t i o n  of the water 
system- 'Rte bonds are payable solily from the i r - W g e s  levied a provided in the Bond 
Ordinance and axe sbudured as follows: 

I 
ksue Date 

Bonds Payable 

Merest Payable 

htaest Rate 

Call Provisions 

. December 1,1968 

$1,200,000 

December 1 

June 1 and December 1 

6.25 % 

Selected by lot on any interest payment 
date, in whole or in pad at premium of: 

2% to December 1,1999 
1 thereafter 

(Continued) 



m N T U W  m K E ,  WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,1999 and 1998 

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Total 
Outs tanding Total Cash 

1muz-r;r 1 Prinaual Interest Reuuirements 

Total 

The Bond Ordinance contains covenants requiring that the rates charged for the facilities and 
sC~ices will produce revenues sufficient at all h e s  to pay, as they come due, prinapal and 
interest on the related bonds, and to pay all costs of operations and maintenance of the sysystem. 

nd that the District will not sell or loan or in any manner dispose of the water system until all 
bonds have been paid in full. 

Note pqable: The Division acquired $200,000 of Division ITS debt obligation to the Kmtudry 
k ib imc tu re  Authority as part of the merger agreement (Note 1). Prinapal and interest 
payments are-! made semi-anndy on June 1 and December 1. The note bevs inter& at rates 
ranging born 4.25% to 5.75% and is due June 1,2008. The balance of the note at December 31, 
1999 and 1998 ws $148,795 and $162,566, respectively. 5dteduled principal payments due on the 
note dvdng the five y e m  subsequent to December 31,1999 and thereafter are as follows: 20W - 
$14,434; 2001 - $15,152; 2002 - $15,941; 2003 - $16,676; 2004 - $17,4? years thereafter - $59,lG. 

NOTE 6 - INCOME TAXES 

The Division, by ~irt.ie of ib creation under the Kentucky Revised Statutes, Chapter 74, is a public 
body m d  =Mipi born both property and  kcorne taxes. 

(Continued) 



KENTUCKY T U R N P m  WATER DISTRICT 
DrvIsION I 

YEAR 2000 ISSUE 
December 31,1999 

r 
(Unaudited) 

--- 

NOTE 7 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On F e b r u q  17, 2000, the Louisville Water Company signed a lettu of intent to purchase the 
dll of the assets of Kentucky Turnpike Districts 11 and 12 Louisville Water Company wiu receiv.. 

the districts and will assume all outst;i&g liabilities of the districts. LYxtive with the purchase 
of the Company, the purchase agreements in Note 2 wiil be eliminated. 



PHIUP h, FISTER, CPA 

1, STEPHEN F R E E ~ A H ,  (PA 
." " 

;' I I I A H  F. ROHH, CPA 
---- 

C E L T I I I E O  P U B L I C  A C Z O U H T A X T I  

To The Com;ssioners 
Kentucky Turnpike Water Distict - District ]CE 
Shepherdsvillei Kentucky 40165 

- We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Kentucky Turnpike Water District 
-Division 71 as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the relatd statements of o p e n ~ o n s ,  
changes in retained earnings and cash flows for the year then ended. These kanciai 
statements are the responsibility of the District's Commissioners. Our responsibiiiry is 
to express an opinion on These financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require that we plan and periorm the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of materid misstatement. An 
audit indudes examining, on a test bmis, evidence s~ppolt inp the amountr and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit aiso indudes assessing the accounting 
p h d p l e s  used a n d  significant esfimates made by the District's Commissioners, as well 
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe &at our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements rkferred to above present fairly, in all material 
r e ~ p ~ b ,  the fmancial position of Kentucky Turnpike Water District - Division IZ as of 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of iis operations for the years then ended in 
conformity with g e n e d y  accepted .accoun.ling principles. 

F I S ~ R O ' - B ~  C I 

PSC 
Louisville, Kentucky 



=pTmcIN " r n I I ( E  WATER 
B W ~  SaEETS 

AS Qp D E ~ E R  31,1999 1998 

Utility Plant - Note 
Utility plant in sesemce 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Construction work in proms5 

Total UtDiry plant 

Other Property and Investments 
Money market fund 
Notes receivable 
Due from Division f 
Customer deposit fund 
Other s p d  funds 

Tatd other property and investments 

Ciuz.ent Assets 
Cash - Note B 

Accounis receivable 
??repaid exxense 
Material and slipply inventory 

Total current assets 

Deferred C h a ~ g  55,802 62367 
unamortized debt cast, net 

%&'jQ&2 
Total Ass& 

m 

Fund Balances 
Unappropriated reiained earnings 
Contributions in aid of construdon - 80te F 

Total fund balances 

Long-Term Debt, leis ~ r r e h t  portion 
- Note D 

Contingent Liabilities - Note G 

C~~r ren t  and Accrued Liabilities - 
Account3 payable 
Acrrued interest payable 
Other accrued expenses and liabilities 
Curwl poltion of longterm debt - Noie D 

Tcaal current and ac,med liabilities 

Customer Advanced for Construciion - - - Nute E 

Total Fund Balm=, Liabilities 
rind Other Credia iz=dWG@ 

See accompanying notes and independat accoumants' repofi. 



Operating Revenues 
Metered sales to residential custmmen 
Metered sales to commerdal customers 
Ofher water rwenu& (adjustmenti) - net 

0 revenues Total opePatin, 

Operating Expenses 
Operation expenses 
Maintenance expenses 

Total operation and maintenance 
expenses 

Depreciation expenses 
iprnortization expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Bet operating revenue 

Ban-Operating Zncnrne Pxpenses) 
a teres t  income 
Other income 
Interest expense 
Gain (loss) on sale of fixed assets 

Bet non-operating expenses 

Bet Income (Loss) - Note B 

See accompanm dotes and independent at counta.nt"s report. 
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